
Page 1 of 360 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2019 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of August 5, 2019. 

Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers and Reserve Officers 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 
Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 9, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 

4. Resolution correcting a scrivener's error and amending Resolution #21,590 relative to voluntary 
annexation of certain real estate. 

5. Public hearing on applications for voluntary annexation of certain real estate to the City of Cedar 
Falls. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 19, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

6. Resolution approving the voluntary annexation of property to the City of Cedar Falls which lies within 
two (2) miles of the corporate boundaries of the City of Hudson. 

7. Public hearing on a proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of certain city-
owned real estate to Strickler Properties, L.C. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 9, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

1



Page 2 of 360 

8. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development and a 
Minimum Assessment Agreement with Strickler Properties, L.C., and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to Strickler Properties, L.C. 

Old Business 

9. Pass Ordinance #2950, granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, upon its second 
consideration. 

10. Pass Ordinance #2952, granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for 
construction of an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, upon its second 
consideration. 

11. Pass Ordinance #2953, amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing 
that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, by and for the benefit of the 
State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, 
Hudson Community School District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing 
districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to 
and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with 
Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, upon its 
second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

12. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Charles Blair-Broeker to 
the Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2022. 

13. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 5, 2019 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Charles Blair-Broeker.  
b) College Hill Parking Study. 
c) Information Systems Update. 
d) On-street parking of trailers.  
e) Bills & Payroll. 

14. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the 
position of Planner I. 

15. Approve the application of Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

16. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 
b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
h) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - renewal. 
i) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 
j) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
5-day permit. 

2



Page 3 of 360 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

17. Resolution approving and adopting revised job classifications for the positions of Community 
Services Coordinator and Housing Program Specialist in the Community Development Department. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Parking Lot Lease Agreement with Viking 
Pump, Inc. relative to use of a parking lot located in the vicinity of East 4th Street and State Street for 
public parking. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of 
Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 2019-2020 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) funding for the Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Ash Tree Removal Services Informal Project 
Contract with Twin City Tree Service, LLC. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a day cab tractor. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting five Owner's Temporary Grading Easements, in conjunction with 
the 12th Street South Ditch Grading Project. 

23. Resolution receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Feldman Concrete, in the 
amount of $155,170.41, for the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Third Amendment to Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement and Permanent Easement with Panther Farms, LLC relative to a post-construction 
stormwater management plan for Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with JC Enterprises, Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 
110 Lincoln Street. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with Zuidberg NA, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 
2700 Capital Way. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with 
Panther Farms, LLC relative to the final plat of Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 

28. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Minturn, Inc. for the 2019 Bridge 
Maintenance Project. 

29. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 4A to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. for construction 
observation and testing services relative to Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 6A to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. for construction 
observation and testing services relative to Sands Addition. 

31. Resolution approving the closure of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program (a/k/a Section 8) 
Waiting List, as recommended by the Housing Commission. 

32. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for facade 
improvements at 100 East 2nd Street. 

33. Resolution approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for construction 
of a single-unit residential dwelling at 1809 College Street. 

3



Page 4 of 360 

34. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition. 

35. Resolution approving the final plat of Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 

36. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 
Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
relative to the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

37. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
relative to an Agreement for Private Development and conveyance of development property by 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

38. Allow Bills and Payroll of August 19, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Executive Session 

39. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation, following Public Forum. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 5, 2019 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. 
Absent: None. 

 
52424 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of July 15, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
  Kevin Dill, former Director of Veteran Affairs, announced that a representative 

from the Veterans Affairs Midwest Healthcare Network will be at the Public 
Safety Facility at 6:00 p.m. on August 6, 2019 to address healthcare for veterans. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring August 2019 as Gastroparesis 
Awareness Month, and Nikki Morrissey commented. 

 
52425 - Mayor Brown announced that the oaths for public safety and reserve officers are 

being rescheduled to the August 19, 2019 City Council meeting.  
 
52426 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 2. It was then moved by Wieland and seconded by 
deBuhr that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52427 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Tolan provided a brief explanation of the proposed project. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52428 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,634, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2, be adopted. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,634 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52429 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed vacation 
of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along the southern border of 
the Western Home Campus between South Main Street and Prairie Parkway. It 

5



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52430 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed vacation. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Sturch provided a brief summary of the proposed vacation. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed vacation, the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52431 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,635, 

approving and authorizing the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access 
easement located along the southern border of the Western Home Campus 
between South Main Street and Prairie Parkway, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,635 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52432 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive. It was 
then moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52433 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed exemption. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham commented briefly. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed exemption, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52434 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2950, granting a 

partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an industrial use 
manufacturing and office facility at 6601 Development Drive, be passed upon its 
first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52435 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. for 
construction of an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 
Capital Way. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52436 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

6



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

proposed exemption. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham commented briefly. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed exemption, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52437 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that Ordinance #2951, granting 

a partial property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. for construction of 
an industrial use warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way, be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52438 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 19, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way. It was then moved 
by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the proof of publication of notice of 
hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52439 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed exemption. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham commented briefly. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed exemption, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52440 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2952, 

granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of 
an industrial use lab and office facility at 3019 Venture Way, be passed upon its 
first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52441 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2949, 

amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for events on public property, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2949 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52442 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Receive and file the resignation of Evan Renfro as a member of the Library 
Board of Trustees. 
 

7



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of July 15, 2019 relative to 
the following items:  
a) River Gauge Update.  
b) Snow removal requests on sidewalks/trails.  
c) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the report of the July 22, 2019 Joint Meeting of the City Council 
& the Utilities Board of Trustees. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2019. 
 
Approve the request of Community Main Street for temporary signs for the 
Downtown Shuttle. 

 
 Approve the following special event related requests:  
 a) Street closures, Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride, August 17, 2019.  
 b) Parking variance, Campus Street, August 19-23, 2019.  
 c) Street closure, West 5th Street, August 31, 2019.  
 d) Scott Sterrett Memorial Half Marathon, September 7, 2019.  
 e) Closure of a portion of Municipal Lot G, Pear Fair & Oktoberfest, September   

27-30, 2019. 
 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Dollar General Store, 1922 Valley Park Drive.  
b) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue.  
c) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal.  
b) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Farm Shed, 115-119 Main Street, Class B 

liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal.  
c) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
d) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal.  
f) Texas Roadhouse, 5715 University Avenue, Class C liquor - change in 

ownership.  
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- sidewalk café.  
h) Community Main Street (FondoFest), Overman Park, Special Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52443 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 
 Resolution # 21,636, approving and authorizing execution of an Easement 

Agreement, in conjunction with a sidewalk café at 311 Main Street. 
  
 Resolution # 21,637, approving a Claim for Non-Residential Relocation 

8



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Assistance Reimbursement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

 
Resolution #21,638, approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the South Main Street Parking Lot 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,639, approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for 
Completion of Improvements with Western Home Independent Living Services, 
Inc. and approving an Escrow Agreement relative to the final plat of Western 
Home Communities Ninth Addition. 

 
Resolution #21,640, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Minturn, Inc., in the amount of $186,793.00, for the 2019 Bridge 
Maintenance Project. 
 
Resolution #21,641, approving the application for Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) Funding with the Iowa Department of Transportation relative to 
the Cedar Heights Drive and Greenhill Road Intersection Improvements. 
 
Resolution #21,642, approving and adopting revised Rules of Procedure for the 
Board of Adjustment. 
 
Resolution #21,643, approving the final plat of Park Ridge Estates Subdivision. 
 
Resolution #21,644, approving the final plat of Western Home Communities 
Ninth Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,645, approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation Contract with Brothers Construction 
Enterprises, Inc., relative to a HOME housing rehabilitation project. 
 
Resolution #21,646, approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by CV Properties 2, LLC to CV Commercial 2, LLC 
relative to a private development agreement for development of property located 
at 917 West 23rd Street. 
 
Resolution #21,647, approving a revised Highway 20 Commercial Corridor 
Overlay Zoning District site plan for construction of a restaurant and convenience 
store/gas station/automobile service station to be located on Lot 2 of Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 
Resolution #21,648, approving a PC-2, Planned Commercial Zoning District site 
plan for construction of a retail/professional office building at 918 Viking Road. 
 
Resolution #21,649, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds to order 
pavers to complete the brick pattern for Peter Melendy Park and East 2nd Street 
sidewalk at MU2. 
 
Resolution #21,650, receiving and filing, and setting August 19, 2019 as the date 
of public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 

9



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

estimate of cost for the 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project. 
 
Resolution #21,651, setting August 19, 2019 as the date of public hearing to 
consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development and to 
consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to Strickler Properties, 
L.C. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,636 through #21,651 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52444 - It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 
Resolution #21,652, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the Beau's Beautiful Blessings, Inc. relative to an FY20 Community 
Betterment Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,653, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the Cedar Falls Community Theatre, Inc. relative to an FY20 
Community Betterment Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,654, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to an FY20 Community 
Betterment Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,655, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the HusomeStrong Foundation relative to an FY20 Community 
Betterment Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,656, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the Volunteer Center of the Cedar Valley relative to an FY20 
Community Betterment Grant. 

 
Resolution #21,657, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Symphony Orchestra Association relative to 
an FY20 Community Betterment Grant. 

 
 Following a question by Councilmember Wieland and response by Community 

Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,652 through #21,657 duly passed and 
adopted.  

 
52445 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,658, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of 
Improvements with BJW Holdings, LLC relative to the final plat of Park Ridge 
Estates, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Green and 

10



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

response by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,658 duly passed and adopted.   

 
52446 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,659, 

approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 9 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for 2019 
Engineering Services relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Drainage Study, be 
adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Miller and response by Public 
Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,659 duly passed and adopted.   

 
52447 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,660, 

approving the final plat of Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I, be adopted. 
Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a question by 
Councilmember deBuhr, and Planner II Lehmann provided a brief background on 
the proposed plat.  

 
 Community Services Manager Howard, Planner II Lehmann, City Attorney 

Rogers, Community Development Director Sheetz and City Administrator Gaines 
responded to questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, 
Darrah and Green. 

 
 The following individuals spoke opposed to the proposed development: 
 Chris Nolan, 1510 Athens Court 
 Mary Ann Nolan, 1510 Athens Court 
 Rita Durchenwald, 1525 Athens Court (on behalf of Tim Tjarks, 1521 Athens 

Court) 
 Tim Hanson, 1517 Athens Court 
 
 Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Miller, Blanford, Kruse 

and Wieland, and responses by Manager Howard, Mayor Brown, Attorney 
Rogers, Administrator Gaines and Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse. Motion 
carried 5-2. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,660 duly passed and 
adopted.  

 
52448 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green that a resolution approving a 

Mixed Use Residential Zoning District site plan for a multi-unit residential 
development on Lot 1, Greenhill Village Townhomes II, Phase I be adopted. 
Planner II Lehmann presented the proposed site plan.  

    
   The following individuals spoke opposed to the proposed site plan: 
   Tim Hanson, 1517 Athens Court 
   Mary Ann Nolan, 1510 Athens Court 
   Michelle Hanson, 1517 Athens Court 
   Ryan Frost, 4718 Addison Drive 

11



 
 

 

- 8 - 

 

   Robin Frost, 4718 Addison Drive 
   Chris Nolan, 1510 Athens Court 
 
   Steve Troskey, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) spoke on behalf of the 

developer. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, 
Miller and Darrah, and responses by Community Services Manager Howard, City 
Administrator Gaines and City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by deBuhr and 
seconded by Blanford to table the original motion. Motion to table carried 
unanimously. 

 
52449 -    It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2953, 

amending Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785 and 2923, providing that 
general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of 
Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 
District, Dike-New Hartford Community School District and other taxing districts, 
be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies 
advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred 
by the City in connection with Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following a question by Councilmember Green and response by 
Economic Development Coordinator Graham, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

  
52450 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford that the bills and payroll of 

August 5, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52451 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Blanford to refer to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission the Master Plan for Greenhill Village Townhomes, 
particularly Lot A, and that the developer work with surrounding property owners 
to develop a plan that will preserve the character of the neighborhood. The 
motion to refer carried unanimously. 

  
52452 - Communication Specialist Huisman announced the ‘National Night Out’ event 

that will be held at the Cedar Falls Target on August 6, 2019 from 4-7 P.M. The 
Cedar Falls Public Safety staff will be helping with this family fun event.  

 
 Community Development Director Sheetz announced that Cedar Falls was 

awarded the 2019 All-Star Community Award from the Iowa League of Cities for 
the University Avenue Reconstruction Project. The award will be accepted on 
September 26, 2019. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson and Public Works Director Schrage 

provided an update on the traffic control devices that have been implemented on 

12



 
 

 

- 9 - 

 

West 2nd Street.  
 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to questions by 

Councilmembers Miller, deBuhr and Green regarding commercial fire alarm 
response protocol. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson and City Attorney Rogers responded to 

questions by Mayor Brown, Councilmembers Miller, Wieland and Kruse 
regarding firefighter lawsuits, appeals, complaints and training.  

 
 Councilmember Green announced the Greenhill Road and South Main Street 

neighborhood event taking place on August 6, 2019 from 6-8 P.M.  
 
52453 - Public Safety Services Director Olson and Public Works Director Schrage 

responded to concerns expressed by Butch Brown, 421 Spruce Hills Drive, and 
questions by Councilmembers Blanford and Miller regarding MercyOne’s 
ambulance service response and additional street lighting needed at intersection 
of Greenhill Road and West 27th Street. 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to questions by Simon Harding, 

2238 Sunnyside Circle, regarding the number of firefighters previously (low 30s) 
compared to now (60-70). 

 
 Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to comments by Larry Wyckoff, 

4241 Eastpark Road, regarding an attempted kidnapping incident that occurred 
recently. 

 
52454 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned at 

9:13 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

13



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project 
  Project No. PI-039-3208 
  Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the renovation of Peter Melendy Park. The renovation will include 
the installation of approximately 730 square yards of brick pavers of assorted colors 
(supplied by the City), approximately 470 square yards of PCC sidewalk removal, tree 
plantings, amenities and sodding. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $264,000. The project will 
be funded utilizing TIF.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works 
Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION CORRECTING SCRIVENER’S ERROR AND 

AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 21,590  

 

 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, adopted 

Resolution No. 21,590, receiving and approving pre-annexation agreements for applications for 

voluntary annexation of real estate to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, in said resolution, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

approved pre-annexation agreements included in Attachment B thereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 21,590 mistakenly omitted Dennis and Linda Nebbe from 

the list of property owners who had submitted pre-annexation agreements to the City, which 

constitutes a scrivener’s error that should be corrected. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the third WHEREAS clause on page 1 of Resolution No. 21,590 of the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby corrected and amended as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received Pre-Annexation Agreements in accordance with 

Iowa Code section 368.7(1)(e) from Dennis and Linda Nebbe, Jacob & Jessica 

Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc 

Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, and Debra & Scott Knudtson, all of which are attached 

hereto as Attachment B 

 

2. That Paragraph 7 on page 4 of Resolution No. 21,590 of the City Council of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby corrected and amended as follows: 

 

7. That the form and content of the Pre-Annexation Agreements from Dennis 

and Linda Nebbe, Jacob & Jessica Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, 

Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, 

and Debra & Scott Knudtson, attached hereto as Attachment B, and the 

15



provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same 

hereby are in all respects authorized, approved, and confirmed, and the 

Mayor and the City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized, empowered, 

and directed to execute, attest, seal, and deliver the Pre-Annexation 

Agreements for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and 

content now before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and 

delivery of the Pre-Annexation Agreements, the Mayor and the City Clerk 

are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to record the documents 

so executed and do all such acts and things and to execute all such 

documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the 

provisions of the Pre-Annexation Agreements as executed. 

 

3. That the provisions of Resolution No. 21,590 corrected and amended herein are 

hereby repealed and replaced to the extent inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

4. That all other provisions of Resolution No. 21,590 adopted by this Council on June 

17, 2019, are hereby approved and all actions taken by the Mayor and City Clerk are 

hereby ratified and confirmed. 

 

5. That upon approval, the City Clerk is hereby authorized to record this Resolution. 

 

 

ADOPTED this 19
th

 day of August, 2019. 

 

        

 

        ______________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

16



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 14, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Voluntary Annexation of Territory to the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa 

 

 
On the agenda is a public hearing for approval of eight (8) voluntary annexation 
applications into the City of Cedar Falls. The eight properties are owned by the City of 
Cedar Falls, consisting of approximately 209 acres; Marvin and Jean Mc Elvain, 
consisting of 1.41 acres; Jacob and Jessica Nauholz, consisting of 2.85 acres; Bruce 
and Marilyn Baridon, consisting of 1.47 acres; Rebecca Dickinson, consisting of 2.23 
acres; Scott and Debra Knudtson, consisting of 2.03 acres; Dennis and Linda Nebbe, 
consisting of 21.13 acres; and M. Lathon and Linda Jernigan, consisting of 2.85 acres. 
 
On June 17, 2019, the City Council adopted a resolution setting out procedures which 
would be followed leading up to the consideration of the annexation applications. The 
first of these was a consultation with representatives of the Black Hawk County Board of 
Supervisors and the Cedar Falls Township Trustees, which was held on July 2, 2019. 
Representatives from those groups attended the consultation along with council 
member Susan deBuhr and City staff. Both the Board of Supervisors and Township 
Trustees had an opportunity to offer written recommendations for modification to the 
proposed annexation no later than seven (7) business days following the consultation 
meeting, per Iowa Code Chapter 368. The City did not receive any written 
recommendations for modification to the application from the Board of Supervisors or 
Trustees. However, a letter dated July 8, 2019 from the Cedar Falls Township Trustees 
to the City of Cedar Falls did express concerns about the proposed annexation, but it 
did not include any modifications. Also, the Board of Supervisors has not filed a copy of 
a resolution concerning its position on the annexation proposal. Per Iowa Code section 
368.7(1)(b)(2), failure of the Board to adopt a resolution shall not delay the proceedings 
on the application and such failure is not considered a deficiency in the city’s annexation 
proceedings. 
 
Pursuant to the City Council’s previous resolution, a notice of public hearing was 
published in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier on July 19, 2019. Notices were mailed to 
all interested parties as defined by Iowa law, including the nearby city of Hudson, the 
Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors, the Iowa Northland Regional Council of 
Governments, all affected public utilities, and owners of the property adjacent to the 

17



annexation territory which are not already within the City corporate boundaries. 
 
The proposed annexation territory lies within an area immediately adjacent to the 
western corporate boundaries of the City of Cedar Falls, and falls within an area 
identified in the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan as being suitable for future 
annexation. State law also provides that in considering the annexation applications, the 
City Council should, to the extent practicable, consider smart planning principles of Iowa 
law in the decision whether to approve the annexation. The following factors from the 
smart planning principles of Chapter 18B, Code of Iowa, support annexation of the 
territory to the City of Cedar Falls: the concept of collaboration, in that other 
governmental agencies and stakeholders have been given the opportunity to comment 
on the proposal; occupational diversity, in that the planned development of the farm 
ground into industrial uses will promote increased diversity of employment and business 
opportunities, and will promote the establishment of businesses in locations near 
existing housing, infrastructure, and transportation; and community character, in that the 
development of the property into industrial uses is consistent with the surrounding area, 
and is consistent with the physical character of the city. 
 
It should be noted that this is a 100 percent voluntary annexation, in that all of the 
owners of the properties proposed to be annexed are requesting and consenting to the 
proposed annexation. Iowa annexation law gives significant weight to the desires of the 
owners of the territory that is proposed to be annexed. Therefore, the fact that all of the 
property owners are requesting approval of the annexation of their properties to the City 
is an important factor that supports approval of the annexation application. 
 
If the City Council approves the annexation applications, then the next step in the 
process is for the annexation applications to be submitted to the City Development 
Board, of the Iowa Economic Development Authority, in Des Moines, Iowa, for review 
and consideration by the Board. That Board would conduct a hearing on the request for 
annexation at one of their upcoming meetings. If the City Development Board approves 
the annexation request, the Board will file the decision with the Iowa Secretary of State 
and the Black Hawk County Recorder, whereupon the annexation of the territory to the 
City of Cedar Falls would be complete. 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council approve the voluntary annexation of the 
territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
Should you have any questions about the voluntary annexation application, please feel 
free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Maria Brownell, Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION CORRECTING SCRIVENER’S ERROR AND 

AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 21,590  

 

 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, adopted 

Resolution No. 21,590, receiving and approving pre-annexation agreements for applications for 

voluntary annexation of real estate to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, in said resolution, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, approved 

pre-annexation agreements included in Attachment B thereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 21,590 mistakenly omitted Dennis and Linda Nebbe from the 

list of property owners who had submitted pre-annexation agreements to the City, which 

constitutes a scrivener’s error that should be corrected. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the third WHEREAS clause on page 1 of Resolution No. 21,590 of the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby corrected and amended as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the City has received Pre-Annexation Agreements in accordance with 

Iowa Code section 368.7(1)(e) from Dennis and Linda Nebbe, Jacob & Jessica 

Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc 

Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, and Debra & Scott Knudtson, all of which are attached 

hereto as Attachment B 

 

2. That Paragraph 7 on page 4 of Resolution No. 21,590 of the City Council of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby corrected and amended as follows: 

 

7. That the form and content of the Pre-Annexation Agreements from Dennis 

and Linda Nebbe, Jacob & Jessica Nauholz, M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, 

Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain, Rebecca Dickinson, 

and Debra & Scott Knudtson, attached hereto as Attachment B, and the 

58



provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same 

hereby are in all respects authorized, approved, and confirmed, and the 

Mayor and the City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized, empowered, 

and directed to execute, attest, seal, and deliver the Pre-Annexation 

Agreements for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and 

content now before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and 

delivery of the Pre-Annexation Agreements, the Mayor and the City Clerk 

are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to record the documents so 

executed and do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents 

as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Pre-

Annexation Agreements as executed. 

 

3. That Resolution No. 21,590 is hereby repealed and replaced to the extent inconsistent 

with this Resolution. 

 

4. That all other provisions of Resolution No. 21,590 adopted by this Council on June 

17, 2019, are hereby approved and all actions taken by the Mayor and City Clerk are 

hereby ratified and confirmed. 

 

5. That upon approval, the City Clerk is hereby authorized to record this Resolution. 

 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _________________, 20__. 

 

        

 

        ______________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

59



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 

OF PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

WHICH LIES WITHIN TWO (2) MILES OF THE CORPORATE 

BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF HUDSON, IOWA 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, received eight (8) 

applications for voluntary annexation of approximately 244 acres, more or less, of property from 

the owners of certain real estate located in Black Hawk County, Iowa, and legally described as set 

forth on Attachment A, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, and shown on 

the map identified as Attachment B attached hereto, and by this reference made a part hereof; and 

 

WHEREAS, the real estate proposed to be annexed lies within two (2) miles of the 

corporate boundary of the City of Hudson, Iowa, and, as required by Iowa Code Chapter 368 

(2019), notification of the public hearing on the applications for voluntary annexation has been 

provided to the City Council of the City of Hudson, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, the real estate proposed to be annexed includes a portion of the south one 

half (1/2) of the Viking Road right-of-way and a portion of the east one-half (1/2) of the S. Union 

Road right-of-way, both of which are owned by, or subject to an easement in favor of, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, and, in accordance with Iowa Code section 368.5, the County Attorney of Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, has been notified of the public hearing on this matter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the applications for voluntary annexation are entirely voluntary, in that all of 

the owners of all of the property proposed to be annexed have signed the applications for voluntary 

annexation, and no property is proposed to be annexed without the consent of all of the owners; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the real estate proposed to be annexed collectively adjoins the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, as required by Iowa Code Chapter 368; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 21,590 adopted by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, on June 17, 2019, notice of the time and place of-public hearing, including a legal 

description of the property proposed to be annexed, has been published in the Waterloo/Cedar 

Falls Courier, as required by law, at least ten (10) business days prior to the date of the public 

hearing; and 

60



2 

 

 

 WHEREAS, written notice of a consultation on the Application for Voluntary Annexation 

of property to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, was mailed to the Chairperson of the Board of 

Supervisors of Black Hawk County, Iowa, and to the Clerk of the Cedar Falls  Township Trustees, 

at least fourteen (14) business days prior to the date that written notice of the public hearing, 

including the time and place of public hearing, was mailed to the persons and entities described in 

this Resolution, consisting of the affected utilities, the various governmental bodies, and each 

owner of property that adjoins the territory to be annexed that is not already located in the City; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, such consultation was held with representatives of the Black Hawk County 

Board of Supervisors and the Cedar Falls Township Trustees on July 2, at 4:00 p.m.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors did not make written 

recommendations for modification of the proposed annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors did not file a copy of a 

resolution concerning its position on the annexation proposal, which, pursuant to Iowa Code 

section 368.7, shall neither delay nor be considered a deficiency in these proceedings; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Township Trustees submitted a letter to the City dated July 8, 

2019, and received by the Community Development Department on July 12, 2019, with concerns 

and comments regarding the expansion of City boundaries, which has been considered by the City 

Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, written notice of the public hearing, including the time and place of public 

hearing and a legal description of the property proposed to be annexed, along with a copy of the 

eight (8) applications for voluntary annexation, was mailed by certified mail at least fourteen (14) 

business days prior to the date of the public hearing to the following recipients at the addresses 

shown in the affidavit of mailing, attached hereto as Attachment C: the Chairperson of the Board 

of Supervisors of Black Hawk County, Iowa; the Black Hawk County Attorney; the City Council 

of the City of Hudson, Iowa; Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, the regional 

planning authority for  the property proposed to be annexed; and the owners of property adjoining 

the territory to be annexed which is not located in the City of Cedar Falls; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on the applications for voluntary annexation, 

and all written objections filed with the City Clerk prior to the time of said public hearing and all 

oral comments made at the public hearing have been duly considered by the City Council; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered smart planning principles in its decision 

about whether to approve the annexation, including, but not limited to, the following smart 

planning principles from Iowa Code Chapter 18B: 

 

a. Consistent with Iowa Code Section 18B.1(1), Collaboration, the City formally 

notified, consulted with, and gave opportunity to be heard, to the following governmental, 

community and individual stakeholders: adjacent owners of property which are not already 

61



3 

 

part of the corporate limits of Cedar Falls; representatives of the Cedar Falls Township 

Trustees, of which the territory is a part; the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors, 

which is the governmental agency overseeing this unincorporated territory located in Black 

Hawk County; the City of Hudson, Iowa, whose corporate boundary is within two (2) miles 

of the annexation territory; the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments, the 

regional planning authority for the area; all affected public utilities; and all interested 

persons, citizens, and others who attended the public hearing on the voluntary annexation 

applications; and 

 

b. Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 18B.1(4), Occupational diversity, the City 

considered that the planned development of the proposed annexation territory into 

industrial uses will promote increased diversity of employment and business opportunities, 

and will promote the establishment of businesses in locations near existing housing, 

infrastructure, and transportation; and 

 

c. Pursuant to Iowa Code Section 18B.1(7), Community character, the City 

considered that the planned development of the proposed annexation territory into 

industrial uses is consistent with the surrounding area, and is consistent with the physical 

character of the city, particularly the area adjacent to the annexation territory to the east, as 

that is the location of the existing Cedar Falls Industrial Park; and 

 

d. If the proposed annexation territory is annexed to the City of Cedar Falls, smart 

planning principles of Iowa Code Chapter 18B shall be applicable to the subsequent 

development of the annexation territory, in that the Cedar Falls City Council adopted a 

comprehensive plan in compliance with Chapter 18B in May 2012, which specifically calls 

for future annexation of territory to the City in an area adjacent to the City’s western 

corporate boundaries, including the territory which is the subject of these annexation 

applications; and 

 

WHEREAS, all of such matters have been considered by the City Council, as well as any 

written comments and oral statements made at the public hearing on this matter; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, of the owners of the property proposed to be annexed, and of the public, that the property 

which is the subject of the eight (8) applications for voluntary annexation be annexed to the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the applications for voluntary annexation filed by Jacob & Jessica Nauholz, 

M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan, Bruce & Marilyn Baridon, Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain, 

Rebecca Dickinson, Debra & Scott Knudtson, Dennis & Linda Nebbe, and the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby approved and accepted, and the real estate which 

is the subject of the eight (8) applications for voluntary annexation, a copy of which 

real estate is legally described as set forth on Attachment A and as shown on the 

62



4 

 

map attached hereto as Attachment B, both of which by this reference are 

incorporated herein, shall be annexed to the  City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, in 

accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 368, and such property shall hereinafter 

become and be a part of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

2. That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and 

execute all documents necessary to obtain approval of this voluntary annexation 

by, and are directed to file the same with, the City Development Board of the State  

of  Iowa, pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 368 and the regulations of the City 

Development Board. 

 

3. That the annexation shall be completed upon the approval and filing of the 

applicable portions of the proceedings by the City Development Board with the 

Iowa Secretary of State and the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 

4. The City Clerk is hereby directed to file a copy of this resolution with the Office of 

the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa, after notification from the City 

Development Board that the annexation is completed. 

 

5. Upon completion of this annexation, the land described herein as set forth in 

Attachment A will be initially classed as lying in the A-1 agricultural district 

pursuant to Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances Sec. 26-121. 

 

 ADOPTED this _____ day of _________________, 20__. 

 

        

 

        ______________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

  

63



5 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA  ) 

) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution Number ________ duly 

and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the ______ day of _________________, 

20__. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of _______, 2019. 

 

 

              

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

64



ATTACHMENT A 

 

Legal Descriptions  

 

 

(City of Cedar Falls Property) 

 

Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof; 

 

AND 

 

North one-half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further 

except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. 

 

(Dennis & Linda Nebbe) 

 

West 800 feet of the North 1,200 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Jacob & Jessica Nauholz) 

 

West 240 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan) 

 

East 240 feet of the West 480 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Bruce & Marilyn Baridon) 

 

East 283 feet of the West 763 feet of the North 260.77 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 

34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 

 (Marvin & Jean Mc Elvain) 

 

East 280 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

 (Rebecca Dickinson) 

 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet except the East 

283 feet of the West 763 feet of the North 7.77 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet and 

the East 40 feet of the West 803 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Attachment A - Page 1
65



 (Debra Dreyer (Knudtson) & Scott Knudtson) 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 147 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Attachment A - Page 2
66



Attachment B - Page 1
67



Attachment B - Page 2
68



Attachment B - Page 3
69



 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

RE: Notification of Public Hearing on Application for Voluntary Annexation to the 

 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

The  undersigned,  being first  duly  sworn,  does  depose  and  state  that  on  the 29th day  of July,  

2019, she personally mailed to the following named entities a notification of public hearing on the 

application for voluntary annexation of certain real estate to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, a copy 

of which notification, with all attachments and enclosures, is attached hereto. Each such 

notification, with all attachments and enclosures, was mailed by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, each such document being mailed in a sealed envelope with proper postage thereon, 

addressed to the said persons or entities at their last known post office addresses, to-wit: 

 

Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors 

Mr. Tom Little, Chairperson 

Black Hawk County Courthouse  

316 E. 5th St, Room 201 

Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

Mr. Brian J. Williams 

Black Hawk County Attorney  

Black Hawk County Courthouse  

316 E. 5th St, Room B-1 

Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

Hon. Mayor and Members of City Council  

City of Hudson, Iowa 

City Hall 

525 Jefferson Street 

Hudson, IA 50643 

 

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

Attn: Executive Director 

229 East Park Ave.  

Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

Central Iowa Water Association  

1351 Iowa Speedway Drive  

Newton, IA  50208 

 

 

Cedar Falls Utilities 

Attn:  Mr. Steve Bernard, General Manager 

1 Utility Parkway 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

Black Hawk Waste Disposal Inc. 

c/o Registered Agent 

James L. Watts 

2001 St. Andrews Cir. 

Bettendorf, IA 52722 

MidAmerican Energy 

c/o Registered Agent 

CT Corporation System 

400 E. Court Ave. 

Des Moines, IA 50309 

 

CenturyLink 

c/o Registered Agent 

CT Corporation System 

400 E. Court Ave. 

Des Moines, IA 50309 

 

Attachment C - Page 170



Abutting Property Owners Abutting Property Owners 

 

Lorraine Andorf Joens 

6512 W Ridgeway Av 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Hertz Farm Management , Inc. 

415 S 11th St Po Box 500 

Nevada, Ia  50201-0500 

 

Alice D. Bullers 

6616 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

David W. Campbell 

6314 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Grace M. Davidson, Trustee 

30603 Van Horn Rd 

New Boston, Mi  48164 

Patrick J. Finnegan 

2603 S Union Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Jerome F. Gaffney 

4224 Wedgewood Dr 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Thomas R. Greiner 

2536 S Union Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

Michael A. Hager 

6830 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Hempen Equipment Corp. 

3303 Dallas Dr 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Larry A. Johansen 

6920 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Robert W. Jones 

2617 S Union Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Randall D. Lorenzen 

6716 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Stephen C. Riggs 

6702 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Troy E. Schlotman 

6910 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Scott W. Scholz 

2342 S Union Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Matthew L. Schultes 

6810 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

Velma Shoemaker Trust 

1345 E Hanover 

Springfield, Mo  65804 

 

Robert J. Zey 

6728 Viking Rd 

Cedar Falls, Ia  50613 

 

 

 

  

Attachment C - Page 271



Attachment C - Page 372



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 8, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Strickler Properties, L.C. (L&N Transportation Services, Inc.) Economic 
Development Project 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
For the past several months, staff has been working with Dave Strickler with Strickler 
Properties, L.C. (L&N Transportation Services, Inc.) toward the construction of a new 
6,000 square foot building for a new office and storage facility within the West Viking 
Road Industrial Park. The company is currently located in downtown Cedar Falls at 209 
Main Street within an existing 3,800 square foot building that they currently own. The 
company would like to construct and own a new building within the industrial park and 
move away from downtown, as it would get them closer to the businesses that they 
work with. This would also have a positive impact on the downtown area as well, as it 
could open a store front along Main Street for a use more compatible with other 
downtown uses. The proposed project will occur on Lot 3 of West Viking Road Industrial 
Park Phase II (1.25 acres total of which approximately 1.0 acre is buildable after 
setback and open space requirement). This new facility will have a minimum building 
valuation and permit valuation of $640,000 and a total project minimum assessed 
valuation of $721,675 (including land). 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

 

As noted in the Introduction, the proposed building will be constructed and owned by 
Strickler Properties, L.C., and will consist of a 6,000 square foot building to be located 
along Development Drive, on a lot located between TED Electric and the new building 
being constructed by ACOH, LLC. The proposed project will have a minimum building 
valuation of $640,000, and a total project valuation including land of $721,675. Strickler 
Properties, L.C. will commence construction this summer/fall with completion 
anticipated within 9-12 months.  

 
COMPANY PROFILE 

 

L&N Transportation Services, Inc. was established in 1991 by the founders Larry and 
Nancy Strickler. They started their company hauling meat products, dry goods, and 

73



storm doors. They also hauled some government products for the first Gulf War. In 1996 
they asked their son David Strickler to join their company. After training their son for two 
years they decided to retire and sell the company to their son David Strickler. Since 
1998 David continued to grow the refrigerated freight business. The company grew from 
a small office in his father's home to the office on Main Street Cedar Falls. In that time 
he has added five full time employees and one part time employee and created Strickler 
Properties, L.C. to own the building in downtown Cedar Falls.  
 

Over the years L&N Transportation Services, Inc. has grown from a small company 
doing about $1.5 million in sales per year to now doing about $12 million in sales per 
year. David now feels it is time to take the next step to a larger office so L&N 
Transportation Services, Inc. can expand their current business as well as moving to 
other aspects of the transportation industry. As we move towards constructing our new 
building in the industrial park it puts us in direct proximity to businesses outside of our 
current focus of refrigerated freight with benefits to both my business and the other 
industries located in the Cedar Falls industrial park. As we move forward the third 
generation of the Strickler family, Steven Strickler, is in  training and going to school 
at UNI and is working towards being the third generation owner of L&N Transportation 
Services, Inc. and take it to new levels of service in the transportation industry. 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For the proposed Strickler Properties, L.C. project, the company would receive at no 
cost, Lot 3 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II (1.25 acres total of which 
approximately 1.0 acre is buildable after setback and open space requirement) in the 
West Viking Road Industrial Park. The new facility will meet all applicable Deed of 
Dedication requirements. The proposed land incentive is consistent with other 
comparable economic development projects that the City has approved.  No other 
incentives will be provided for this project. 

Conclusion 
 

As this memorandum indicates, Strickler Properties, L.C. is proposing to construct a 
new 6,000 square foot office/storage facility on Lot 3 of West Viking Road Industrial 
Park Phase II (1.25 acres total of which approximately 1.0 acre is buildable after 
setback and open space requirement).  The proposed new construction building project 
will have a minimum building permit valuation of $640,000 and a total Minimum 
Assessed Valuation of $721,675 including land.  Construction would commence this 
summer/fall with completion anticipated in approximately 9-12 months. 
 
The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and Strickler Properties, L.C. has been reviewed by Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, and is 
attached for your review and approval. 
 

74



RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
 1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 

Private Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and 
between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Strickler Properties, L.C., and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title 
to certain real estate to Strickler Properties, L.C. 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed Strickler Properties, L.C. economic 
development project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 

75



Venture Way

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production Dr

I

Hawkeye Corrugated Box

Ashley Furniture
Distribution Center

Project Location

Strickler Properties, LC
6,000 sq. ft.
Office/Storage Facility

Bossard

D. LaPorte

AC
OH

, L
LC

Test
America

76



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM 
ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, AND STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C., AND APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A QUIT CLAIM DEED CONVEYING TITLE TO 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 
2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 
2012 (Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, and amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018, the City Council has approved and adopted an 
urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed 
as part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from Strickler Properties, L.C.  
("Developer"), in the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") 
by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, pursuant to which, 
among other things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as 
defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban Renewal Plan as 
legally described in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(defined in the Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the construction of an 
Office/Storage Facility totaling at least 6,000 square feet of finished space, together with all 
related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Development Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 

77



 2 

 
Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 
Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 
 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize 
cities to make loans and grants and to convey real property to developers for economic 
development purposes in furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to 
appropriate such funds, make such expenditures and convey such real property as may be 
necessary to carry out the purposes of said Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for 
such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the 
improvements to be constructed thereon would be established at an amount not less than 
$721,675.00 for a period through December 31, 2031; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa 
businesses being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of 
dispensing funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa 

Code Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are 
satisfied insofar as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of 
development of an industrial building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the 
terms of the Minimum Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code 
Section 403.8(3). 

 

78



 3 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
connection with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in 
furtherance of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the 
Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 
development activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 and 15A of 
the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after 
the execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such 
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement 
as executed, including but not limited to execution and delivery of a Quit Claim Deed conveying 
title to the Development Property to the Developer. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 
executed. 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2019. 
 
 

     
 _________________________________________ 

      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

79



 4 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2019. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 

2019. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

80



 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

AND 
 
 

STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

81



2  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS………………………………………………..  6 

Section 1.1.  Definitions……………………………………………… 6 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES………………  8 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City……………  8 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer.….……..  9 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS…..  12 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements……………… 12 

Section 3.2 Building Permit Valuation Amount…………………….  12 

Section 3.3.  Construction Plans……………………………………… 12 

Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction……… 13 

Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion………………………………  13 

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 14 

Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use……………………………………… 14 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE………………………………………………… 15 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements………………………………… 15 

Section 5.2. Condemnation………………………………………….. 17 

Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment…………………………….. 17 

 

ARTICLE VI.  ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER COVENANTS 17 

 Section 6.1 Execution of Assessment Agreement………………….  17 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Properties……………………………..  18 

Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records……………………………….  18 

Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws………………………………...  18 

Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes….……………………………….  18 

Section 6.6.   Sales Tax………………………………………………  19 

Section 6.7.   Utility Usage…………………….…………………….  19 

Section 6.8.   Annual Certification………………..………………….  19 

Section 6.9 Use of Tax Increments…………………………………  20 

Section 6.10. Opinion of Counsel……………………………………  20 

 Section 6.11. Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

   Property……………………………………………….  20 

 Section 6.12 Relocation .......................................................................  20 

 

82



3  

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND 

TRANSFER………………………………………………………………….  21 

Section 7.1.  Representation As to Development……………………… 21 

Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement……………..………………………………  22 

Section 7.3.  Approvals………………………………………………  23 

Section 7.4 Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of 

  Interest in Development Property to Permitted  

  Transferees .......................................................................  24 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; 

CONDITIONS………………………………………………………… 24 

Section 8.1.  Conveyance of Development Property…………………  24 

Section 8.2.   Form of Deed…………………………………………… 24 

Section 8.3.   Condition of Property; Care and Maintenance…………. 24 

Section 8.4.   Environmental Matters…………………………………. 25 

Section 8.5.   Survey and Platting…………………………………….. 25 

Section 8.6.   Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed……... 25 

Section 8.7.   Recordation of Deed……………………………………. 25 

Section 8.8.   Abstract of Title………………………………………… 25 

Section 8.9.   Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property……… 25 

Section 8.10. Failure to Commence Construction….…………….......  26 

Section 8.11. No Property Tax Exemption…………………………...           26 

 

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION………………………………………  26 

Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants………………..  26 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES………………………………………………….  27 

Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined…………….………………  27 

Section 10.2   Remedies on Default………………………………….  29 

Section 10.3  No Remedy Exclusive………………………………..  30 

Section 10.4  No Implied Waiver……………………………………  30 

Section 10.5   Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses……..  30 

 

ARTICLE XI.  MISCELLANEOUS………………………………………..  30 

Section 11.1.  Conflict of Interest……………………………………  30 

Section 11.2  Non-Discrimination…………………………………… 31 

Section 11.3.  Notices………………………………………………...  31 

Section 11.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections………………………… 31 

Section 11.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed……………………… 32 

Section 11.6.  Governing Law………………………………………… 32 

Section 11.7.  Entire Agreement……………………………………… 32 

Section 11.8.  Successors and Assigns……………………………….  32 

83



4  

Section 11.9.  Termination Date……………………………………… 32 

Section 11.10.  Memorandum of Agreement………..……………….. 32 

Section 11.11.  Immediate Undertaking……………………………… 32 

Section 11.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture……………………… 32 

Section 11.13.  Captions……………………………………………… 32 

Section 11.14.  Number and Gender of Words………………………  32 

Section 11.15.  Invalid Provisions……………………………………  33 

Section 11.16.  Multiple Counterparts… ……………………………  33 

Section 11.17.  Authorization………… ……………………………..  33 

Section 11.18.  Time of the Essence… ………………………………  33 

Section 11.19.  Survival…………… … ……………………………..  33 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A  Development Property…………………………………. 35 

EXHIBIT B   Minimum Improvements………………………………. 36 

EXHIBIT C  Certificate of Completion……………………………… 37 

EXHIBIT D  Minimum Assessment Agreement…………………….. 39 

EXHIBIT E  Form of Legal Opinion………………………………… 43 

EXHIBIT F  Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development... 45 

EXHIBIT G  Form of Deed…………………………………………..  48 

  

84



5  

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter called 

"Agreement"), is made on or as of the _____ day of __________________, 2019, by and 

between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called "City"), 

established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the authorization of 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2019 (Chapter 403 hereinafter called "Urban 

Renewal Act"); and STRICKLER PROPERTIES, L.C.,  (hereinafter called the 

"Developer"),  an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 

209 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. 

 

 WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City 

has undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area and, in 

this connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in an area 

known as the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or 

“Urban Renewal Area”) as set forth in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Plan, as amended (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, has been 

recorded among the land records in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to acquire certain real property located in the 

foregoing Urban Renewal Plan and as more particularly described in Exhibit A annexed 

hereto and made a part hereof (which property as so described is hereinafter referred to as 

the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to develop the Development Property for and 

in accordance with the uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and in accordance with 

this Agreement by constructing certain Minimum Improvements (as hereafter defined) on 

the Development Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property 

pursuant to this Agreement and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement, are in the vital 

and best interests of the residents of the City, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of the applicable State and local laws and requirements under which the 

foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted, including but not limited to 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

85



6  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of 

the parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the others as 

follows: 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Section 1.1.  Definitions.  In addition to other definitions set forth in this Agreement, 

all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the following 

meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

 

 Agreement means this Agreement and all appendices hereto, as the same may be 

from time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

 

 Assessment Agreement means the Minimum Assessment Agreement substantially in 

the form of the agreement contained in Exhibit D attached hereto and hereby made a part 

of this Agreement, among the Developer, the City and the Assessor for the County, 

entered into pursuant to Article VI of this Agreement. 

 

 Assessor's Minimum Actual Value means the agreed minimum actual taxable value 

of the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property for 

calculation and assessment of real property taxes as set forth in the Assessment 

Agreement.  

 

 Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate attached 

hereto as Exhibit C and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

 

 City or Cedar Falls means the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any successor to its 

functions.   

 

 Code of Iowa means the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended. 

 

 Commencement Date means the date of the issuance by the City of a building permit 

for the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Construction Plans means the plans, specifications, drawings and related documents 

of the construction work to be performed by the Developer on the Development Property; 

the plans (a) shall be as detailed as the plans, specifications, drawings and related 

documents which are submitted to the building inspector of the City, and (b) shall include 

at least the following: (1) site plan; (2) foundation plan; (3) basement plans; (4) floor plan 

for each floor; (5) cross sections of each (length and width); (6) elevations (all sides); and 

(7) landscape plan. 

 

 County means the County of Black Hawk, Iowa. 

86



7  

 

 Deed means the form of Quit Claim Deed substantially in the form contained in 

Exhibit G attached hereto, by which the City shall convey the Development Property to 

the Developer. 

 

 Developer means Strickler Properties, L.C.  

 

 Development Property means that portion of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Project Plan of the City described in Exhibit A hereto. 

 

 Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 10.1 of this 

Agreement. 

 

 Industrial Use Office/Storage Facility means the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of an Industrial Use 

Office/Storage Facility totaling at least 6,000 square feet of finished space, together with 

all related site improvements described in the Construction Plans, as outlined in Exhibit B 

hereto, including the land. 

 

 Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which the Developer has 

granted a mortgage or other security interest in the Development Property, or any portion 

or parcel thereof, or any improvements constructed thereon. 

 

 Net Proceeds means any proceeds paid by an insurer to the Developer under a policy 

or policies of insurance required to be provided and maintained by the Developer pursuant 

to Article V of this Agreement and remaining after deducting all expenses (including fees 

and disbursements of counsel) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 

 

 Ordinance shall mean Ordinance(s) of the City under which the taxes levied on the 

taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be divided, with a portion of said taxes 

to be paid into the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, referred to and 

authorized by Section 403.19(2) of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 Project shall mean the construction and operation of the Minimum Improvements, as 

described in this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto. 

 

 State means the State of Iowa. 

 

 Tax Increments means the property tax increment revenues on the Minimum 

Improvements and Development Property divided and made available to the City for 

deposit in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Tax Increment 

87



8  

Revenue Fund, under the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa and the 

Ordinance. 

 

 Termination Date means the date of expiration of the Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 11.9 of this Agreement. 

 

 Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 

reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, 

floods, fires, explosions or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, 

boycotts, lockouts or other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material 

or equipment, litigation commenced by third parties, or the acts of any federal, State or 

local governmental unit (other than the Party claiming the delay). 

 

 Urban Renewal Area means the area included within the boundaries of the Cedar 

Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as amended. 

 

 Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan approved in respect of the 

Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Urban Corridor Renewal Plan, described in the 

preambles hereof. 

 

   ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

 Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City.  The City makes the 

following representations and warranties:  

 

 (a) The City is a municipal corporation and political subdivision organized under 

the provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power 

to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

 

(b) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the City and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 

Developer, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally binding 

instrument of the City enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws 

relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally. 

 

 (c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

conflict with, nor will they result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or 

provisions of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement 

or instrument of whatever nature to which the City is now a party or by which 

it is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

88



9  

 

 (d) The City has not received any notice from any State or federal official that the 

activities of the Developer with respect to the Development Property may or 

will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation (other than those 

notices, if any, of which the Developer has previously been notified in 

writing).  The City is not currently aware of any State or federal claim filed or 

planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, State or 

federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable to the 

Development Property, and the City is not currently aware of any violation of 

any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure 

which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (e) The City will cooperate fully with the Developer in resolution of any building, 

traffic, parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the design, construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (f) The City would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without the 

consideration being made to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 (g) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City 

contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements and obligations of the City, and not of any governing body 

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the City in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

  

 (h) The Development Property is zoned “M-1-P, Planned Industrial District”.  The 

“M-1-P, Planned Industrial District” zoning classification permits by right the 

construction, equipping and operation of the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of the Developer.  The Developer 

makes the following representations and warranties: 

 

(a) The Developer is a limited liability company duly organized and validly 

existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, is properly authorized to conduct 

business in the State of Iowa, and has all requisite power and authority to own 

and operate its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and as 

presently proposed to be conducted, and to enter into and perform its 

obligations under the Agreement. 

  

89



10  

(b) The Developer desires to construct an Industrial Use Office/Storage Facility 

("Minimum Improvements") on the 1.25 acre Development Property, which is 

to be acquired by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and which is 

more particularly described in Exhibit A.  

 

(c) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by 

the other parties hereto, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally 

binding instrument of the Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, 

except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization 

or other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 (d) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

conflict with, nor will  they result in a violation or breach of, the terms, 

conditions or provisions of the certificate of organization and operating 

agreement, together with all amendments thereto, of the Developer or of any 

contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement or instrument of 

whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it or its  

properties are bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the 

foregoing. 

 

 (e) There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against or 

affecting the Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by 

any governmental body in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse 

decision which could materially adversely affect the business (present or 

prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the 

Agreement or the ability of Developer to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement. 

 

 (f) The Developer will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal Plan and all 

local, State and federal laws and regulations, except for variances necessary to 

construct the Minimum Improvements contemplated in the Construction Plans.  

 

 (g) The Developer will use its best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, in a 

timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a 

timely manner, all requirements of all applicable local, State, and federal laws 

and regulations which must be obtained or met before the Minimum 

Improvements may be lawfully constructed. 

 

90



11  

 (h) The construction of the Minimum Improvements will require a total 

investment of not less than Six Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars and no/100 

Dollars ($640,000.00), and a taxable valuation of Seven Hundred Twenty One 

Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy Five Dollars and no/100 Dollars 

($721,675) is reasonable for the Minimum Improvements and the land that 

together comprise the Development Property. 

 

 (i) The Developer has not received any notice from any local, State or federal 

official that the activities of the Developer with respect to the Development 

Property may or will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation 

(other than those notices, if any, of which the City has previously been notified 

in writing). The Developer is not currently aware of any State or federal claim 

filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, 

State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable 

to the Development Property, and the Developer is not currently aware of any 

violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or 

federal environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (j) The Developer has equity funds and/or has commitments for financing in 

amounts sufficient to successfully complete the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, in accordance with the Construction Plans contemplated by 

this Agreement. 

 

 (k) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (l) The Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Minimum 

Improvements will be substantially completed by the 1
st
 day of November, 

2020.  

 

 (m) The Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement 

without the consideration being made to the Developer pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

 

 (n) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the 

Developer contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, 

promises, agreements and obligations of the Developer, and not of any 

91



12  

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the Developer in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements. The Developer agrees that it 

will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property in 

conformance with the Construction Plans submitted to the City.  The Developer agrees 

that the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements to be constructed shall not be 

significantly less than the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements as detailed and 

outlined in the Construction Plans, and shall in no event require a total investment of less 

than Six Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($640,000.00). 

 

 Section 3.2  Building Permit Valuation Amount.  The Developer shall apply to the 

City for a building permit, and shall pay all necessary permit fees in connection with the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property, based upon a 

building permit valuation amount (hereinafter the "Building Permit Valuation Amount") 

of a minimum of Six Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($640,000.00), 

by no later than the 1
st
 day of December, 2019. 

 

 Section 3.3.  Construction Plans.  The Developer shall cause Construction Plans to 

be provided for the Minimum Improvements which shall be subject to approval by the 

City as provided in this Section 3.3.  The Construction Plans shall be in conformity with 

the Urban Renewal Plan, this Agreement, and all applicable State and local laws and 

regulations, except for variances the Developer and the City agree are necessary to 

construct or operate the Minimum Improvements.  The City shall approve the 

Construction Plans in writing if: (a) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement; (b) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of the Urban Renewal Plan; (c) to the best of City's knowledge, the 

Construction Plans conform to all applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances, 

rules and regulations and City permit requirements; (d) the Construction Plans are 

adequate for purposes of this Agreement to provide for the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements and (e) no Event of Default under the terms of this Agreement has 

occurred; provided, however, that any such approval of the Construction Plans pursuant to 

this Section 3.3 shall constitute approval for the purposes of this Agreement only and shall 

not be deemed to constitute approval or waiver by the City with respect to any building, 

fire, zoning or other ordinances or regulations of the City, and shall not be deemed to be 

sufficient plans to serve as the basis for the issuance of a building permit if the 

Construction Plans are not as detailed or complete as the plans otherwise required for the 

issuance of a building permit.  The site plans submitted by the Developer to the building 

official of the City for the Development Property shall be adequate to serve as the 

Construction Plans, if such site plans are approved by the building official. 

 

92



13  

 Approval of the Construction Plans by the City shall not relieve the Developer of 

any obligation to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or the 

provisions of applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations, nor shall 

approval of the Construction Plans by the City be deemed to constitute a waiver of any 

Event of Default. 

 

 Approval of Construction Plans hereunder is solely for purposes of this Agreement, 

and shall not constitute approval for any other City purpose nor subject the City to any 

liability for the Minimum Improvements as constructed. 

 

 Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction.  Subject to 

Unavoidable Delays, the Developer shall cause construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be undertaken by no later than the 1st day of December, 2019, and 

completed (i) by no later than the 1
st
 day of November, 2020, or (ii) by such other date as 

the parties shall mutually agree upon in writing.  Time lost as a result of Unavoidable 

Delays shall be added to extend the completion date by a number of days equal to the 

number of days lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays.  However, an extension of the 

completion of the Minimum Improvements shall not affect the date upon which the 

Assessor's Minimum Actual Value shall become effective.  All work with respect to the 

Minimum Improvements to be constructed or provided by the Developer on the 

Development Property shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans as submitted by 

the Developer and approved by the City.  The Developer agrees that it shall permit 

designated representatives of the City to enter upon the Development Property during the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements to inspect such construction. 

 

 Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion.  Upon written request of the Developer after 

issuance of an occupancy permit for the Minimum Improvements, the City will furnish the 

Developer with a Certificate of Completion in recordable form, in substantially the form 

set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto.  Such Certificate of Completion shall be a 

conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 

this Agreement with respect to the obligations of the Developer to cause construction of 

the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 The Certificate of Completion may be recorded in the Black Hawk County 

Recorder's office at the Developer's sole expense.  If the City shall refuse or fail to provide 

a Certificate of Completion in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.5, the City 

shall, within twenty (20) days after written request by the Developer, provide to the 

Developer a written statement indicating in adequate detail in what respects the Developer 

has failed to complete the Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of 

this Agreement, or is otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and what 

measures or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for the Developer to take 

or perform in order to obtain such Certificate of Completion.  

 

93



14  

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use.  The Developer shall: 

 

(a) Use the Development Property for any lawful use, and devote the 

Development Property to, and only to and in accordance with, the uses 

specified in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

until the Termination Date; and 

 

(b) Not discriminate upon the basis of race, creed, color, sex, gender, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, age, disability or national origin in the 

sale, lease, or rental or in the use or occupancy of the Development Property or 

any improvements erected or to be erected thereon, or any part thereof. 

 

(c) It is intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section shall be covenants running with the land and that they shall, in any 

event, and without regard to technical classification or designation, legal or 

otherwise, and except only as otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement, be binding, to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, for 

the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by, the City, its successors and 

assigns, as against every successor in interest to the Development Property, or 

any part thereof or any interest therein, and as against any party in possession 

or occupancy of the Development Property or any part thereof.  It is further 

intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in 

subdivisions (a) and (b) of this Section shall remain in effect only through the 

Termination Date. 

 

(d) It is intended and agreed that the City and its successors and assigns shall be 

deemed beneficiaries of the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section, both for and in its own right and also for the purposes of protecting 

the interests of the community and other parties, public or private, in whose 

favor or for whose benefit such agreements and covenants have been provided.  

Such agreements and covenants shall run in favor of the City, until the 

Termination Date, during which time such agreements and covenants shall be 

in force and effect, without regard to whether the City has at any time been, 

remains, or is an owner of any land or interest therein to or in favor of which 

such agreements and covenants relate.  The City shall have the right, in the 

event of any breach of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise all the 

rights and remedies, and to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or 

other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or 

covenant, to which it or any other beneficiaries of such agreement or covenant 

may be entitled. 

 

94



15  

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION 

 

 Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements. 

 

 (a) The Developer will provide and maintain or cause to be maintained at all times 

during the process of constructing the Minimum Improvements (and, from 

time to time at the request of the City, furnish the City with proof of payment 

of premiums on): 

 

  (i) Builder's risk insurance, written on the so-called "Builder's Risk -- 

Completed Value Basis", in an amount equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the insurable value of the Minimum Improvements at the 

date of completion, and with coverage available in nonreporting form 

on the so-called "all risk" form of policy;  

 

  (ii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 

contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations 

and contractual liability insurance), together with an Owner's 

Contractor's Policy, with limits against bodily injury and property 

damage of at least $2,000,000.  The City shall be named as an 

additional insured for the City's liability or loss arising out of or in any 

way associated with the Minimum Improvements and arising out of any 

act, error, or omission of the Developer, its members, managers, 

officers, contractors and subcontractors or anyone else for whose acts 

the City may be held responsible (with coverage to the City at least as 

broad as that which is provided to the Developer and not lessened or 

avoided by endorsement).  The policy shall contain a "severability of 

interests" clause and provide primary insurance over any other 

insurance maintained by the City. 

 

  (iii) Worker's compensation insurance, with statutory coverage. 

 

 (b) Upon completion of construction of the Minimum Improvements and at all 

times prior to the Termination Date, the Developer shall maintain, or cause to 

be maintained, at its cost and expense  (and from time to time at the request of 

the City shall furnish proof of the payment of premiums on) insurance as 

follows: 

 

  (i) Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Minimum Improvements 

under a policy or policies covering such risks as are ordinarily insured 

against by similar businesses, including (without limiting the generality 

of the foregoing) fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious 

mischief, explosion, water damage, demolition cost, debris removal, 

95



16  

and collapse in an amount not less than the full insurable replacement 

value of the Minimum Improvements, but any such policy may have a 

deductible amount of not more than $25,000.  No policy of insurance 

shall be so written that the proceeds thereof will produce less than the 

minimum coverage required by the preceding sentence, by reason of co-

insurance provisions or otherwise, without the prior consent thereto in 

writing by the City.  The term "full insurable replacement value" shall 

mean the actual replacement cost of the Minimum Improvements 

(excluding foundation and excavation costs and costs of underground 

flues, pipes, drains and other uninsurable items) and equipment, and 

shall be determined from time to time at the request of the City, but not 

more frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant 

or insurer selected and paid for by the Developer and approved by the 

City. 

 

  (ii) Comprehensive general public liability insurance, including personal 

injury liability for injuries to persons and/or property, including any 

injuries resulting from the operation of automobiles or other motorized 

vehicles on or about the Development Property, in the minimum 

amount for each occurrence and for each year of $2,000,000. 

 

  (iii) Such other insurance, including worker's compensation insurance 

respecting all employees of the Developer, in such amount as is 

customarily carried by like organizations engaged in like activities of 

comparable size and liability exposure. 

 

 (c) All insurance required by this Article V to be provided prior to the 

Termination Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance 

companies selected by the Developer which are authorized under the laws of 

the State to assume the risks covered thereby.  The Developer will deposit 

annually with the City copies of policies evidencing all such insurance, or a 

certificate or certificates or binders of the respective insurers stating that such 

insurance is in force and effect.  Unless otherwise provided in this Article V, 

each policy shall contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or modify 

it without giving written notice to the Developer and the City at least thirty 

(30) days before the cancellation or modification becomes effective.  Not less 

than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any policy, the Developer  shall 

furnish the City evidence satisfactory to the City that the policy has been 

renewed or replaced by another policy conforming to the provisions of this 

Article V, or that there is no necessity therefor under the terms hereof.  In lieu 

of separate policies, Developer may maintain a single policy, or blanket or 

umbrella policies, or a combination thereof, which provide the total coverage 

required herein, in which event the Developer shall deposit with the City a 

96



17  

certificate or certificates of the respective insurers as to the amount of 

coverage in force upon the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (d) Developer agrees to notify the City immediately in the case of damage 

exceeding $25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Minimum 

Improvements or any portion thereof resulting from fire or other casualty.  Net 

Proceeds of any such insurance shall be paid directly to the Developer, and 

Developer will forthwith repair, reconstruct and  restore the Minimum 

Improvements to substantially the same or an improved condition or value as 

they existed prior to the event causing such damage and, to the extent 

necessary to accomplish such repair, reconstruction and restoration, the 

Developer will apply the Net Proceeds of any insurance relating to such 

damage received by Developer to the payment or reimbursement of the costs 

thereof.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to casualties that occur 

prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 (e) The Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction and restoration of the 

Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of insurance 

received by Developer for such purposes are sufficient.   

 

 Section 5.2.  Condemnation.  In the event that title to and possession of the 

Minimum Improvements or any other material part thereof shall be taken in condemnation 

or by the exercise of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or other 

person (except the City), so long as the Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect, the 

Developer or his successor shall, with reasonable promptness after such taking, notify the 

City as to the nature and extent of such taking. 

 

 Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment.  Upon receipt of any Condemnation 

Award or property insurance proceeds, the Developer shall use the entire Condemnation 

Award to reconstruct the Minimum Improvements (or, in the event only a part of 

Minimum Improvements have been taken, then to reconstruct such part) upon the 

Development Property or elsewhere within the Project Area. 

           

ARTICLE VI.  ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER COVENANTS 

 

 Section 6.1. Execution of Assessment Agreement.  The Developer shall agree to, 

and with the City shall execute, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, an 

Assessment Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 403.19, Code of Iowa, 

substantially in the form and content of Exhibit D attached hereto, specifying the 

Assessor's Minimum Actual Value for the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on 

the Development Property for calculation of real property taxes.  Specifically, the 

Developer shall agree to a minimum actual taxable value for the Minimum Improvements 

and the land that together comprise the Development Property, which will result in a 

97



18  

minimum actual taxable value as of January 1, 2021, of not less than Seven Hundred 

Twenty One Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and no/100 Dollars 

($721,675.00) (such minimum actual taxable value at the time applicable is herein referred 

to as the "Assessor's Minimum Actual Value").  Nothing in the Assessment Agreement 

shall limit the discretion of the Assessor to assign an actual taxable value to the Minimum 

Improvements or the land, in excess of such Assessor's Minimum Actual Value nor 

prohibit the Developer or its successors from seeking through the exercise of legal or 

administrative remedies a reduction in such actual taxable value for property tax purposes; 

provided, however, that the Developer or its successors shall not seek a reduction of such 

actual taxable value below the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value in any year so long as 

the Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect.  The Assessment Agreement shall 

remain in effect until the 31st day of December, 2031 (the "Termination Date").  The 

Assessment Agreement shall be certified by the Assessor for the County as provided in 

Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, and shall be filed for record in the office of the 

County Recorder of the County, and such filing shall constitute notice to any subsequent 

encumbrancer or purchaser of the Development Property (or part thereof), whether 

voluntary or involuntary, and such Assessment Agreement shall be binding and 

enforceable in its entirety against any such subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer, as well 

as any prior encumbrancer consenting thereto. 

 

 Section 6.2.  Maintenance of Properties.   The Developer will maintain, preserve and 

keep the Minimum Improvements in good repair and working order, ordinary wear and 

tear excepted, and from time to time will make all necessary repairs, replacements, 

renewals and additions, until the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records.  The Developer will keep at all times proper 

books of record and account in which full, true and correct entries will be made of all 

dealings and transactions of or in relation to the business and affairs of the Developer in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied throughout 

the period involved, and Developer will provide reasonable protection against loss or 

damage to such books of record and account.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply 

for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer will comply with all laws, 

rules and regulations relating to the Minimum Improvements, other than laws, rules and 

regulations the failure to comply with which or the sanctions and penalties resulting 

therefrom, would not have a material adverse effect on the Developer’s business, property, 

operations, or condition, financial or otherwise.  The provisions of this paragraph shall 

apply for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes.  The Developer shall pay, when due, all real 

property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts of the 

Development Property acquired and owned by it.  

98



19  

 

 The Developer and its successors agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) It will not seek any tax exemption, either presently or prospectively authorized 

under any State or federal law with respect to taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property between the date of execution of this 

Agreement and the Termination Date.  The foregoing shall not impair any 

rights to appeal the valuation set by the Black Hawk County Assessor as 

provided by law. 

 

 (b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 

constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be 

applicable to the Development Property, Minimum Improvements or to the 

Developer or raise the inapplicability or constitutionality of any such tax 

statute as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent tax proceedings. 

 

 (c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, except reimbursement, if any, 

that is specifically provided for in this Agreement, either presently or 

prospectively authorized under Iowa Code Chapter 403 or 404, or any other 

local, State or federal law, of the taxation of real property contained on the 

Development Property between the date of execution of this Agreement and 

the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.6.   Sales Tax.  The Developer shall pay all sales tax payable with respect 

to the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Section 6.7.  Utility Usage.  The Developer agrees for itself and its successors and 

assigns, specifically including all commercial tenants and all other persons, firms or other 

entities operating any business on the Development Property or any portion thereof, that 

for all periods up to the Termination Date that all utility needs for the Industrial Use 

Office/Storage Facility shall be furnished from City-owned utilities, including electricity, 

natural gas, water, sanitary sewer, cable television, internet and other fiber-optic 

communications, including telephony (if and when telephony is available through City-

owned utilities).  Although this shall be the sole source for such utility services, the 

Developer and its successors and assigns, as defined and described in this section, shall 

not, however, have any obligation or duty to use or take any minimum amount, and shall 

have no obligation to pay any amount in excess of the generally applicable rates for like 

users based upon actual use. 

  

 Section 6.8.  Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring and performance 

of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of the Developer shall annually provide 

to the City: (a) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property have been 

99



20  

paid for the prior fiscal year; and (b) certification that, to the best of such officer’s 

knowledge during the preceding twelve (12) months, the Developer  was not  in default in 

the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no Event of 

Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

become an Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate 

or during such period, or if the signer is aware of any such default, event or Event of 

Default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature thereof, its period of 

existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with respect 

thereto.  Such statement, proof and certificate shall be provided not later than November 1 

of each year, commencing November 1, 2021, and ending on November 1, 2030, both 

dates inclusive. 

 

 Section 6.9. Use of Tax Increments.  The City shall be free to use any and all Tax 

Increments collected in respect of the Development Property for any purpose for which 

the Tax Increments may lawfully be used pursuant to the provisions of the Urban Renewal 

Act; and the City shall have no obligations to the Developer with respect to the use of 

such increments. 

 

 Section 6.10.  Opinion of Counsel.  Concurrent with execution of this Agreement, 

Developer shall cause its counsel to execute and deliver to City an Opinion of Counsel 

substantially in the form and of the content of Exhibit E attached hereto. 

  

 Section 6.11.  Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

Property.  The Developer agrees to include provisions in each commercial lease 

agreement the Developer enters into with any tenant that will occupy the Development 

Property or operate a business thereon, for all periods up to the Termination Date, which 

provide as follows: (a) that tenant acknowledges that the leased premises are part of the 

Development Property and are subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (b) 

that this Agreement is binding upon Developer’s successors and assigns, specifically 

including all commercial tenants; (c) that certain of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement specifically impact the tenant’s use of and conduct of its business operations 

on the Development Property, which terms and conditions include, but are not necessarily 

limited to, Sections 4.1, 5.1(b), 6.2, 6.7, 7.2, 7.3 and 11.2; and (d) that the tenant agrees to 

operate its business and conduct its operations on the Development Property in a manner 

consistent with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 6.12.  Relocation.  Developer agrees and covenants that it shall not, absent 

written consent from the City, sell or lease the Minimum Improvements or Development 

Property to any enterprise that is relocating (“Relocating”) to the City from another part of 

Black Hawk County or a contiguous county during the term (the “Term”) of this 

Relocation provision (the “Relocation Provision”).  “Relocating” or “Relocation” means 

the closure or substantial reduction of an enterprise’s existing operations in one area of the 

State and the initiation of substantially the same operation in the same county or a 

100



21  

contiguous county in the State.  The Term of this Relocation Provision will expire on the 

Termination Date as described in Section 11.9(a).  In general, urban renewal incentives 

cannot be used for projects that involve a Relocating enterprise (whether the relocating 

enterprise is the developer, land owner, tenant, or otherwise) unless there is a written 

agreement regarding the use of economic incentives between the city where the business 

is currently located and the city to which the business is Relocating, either specific to this 

Project or in general (i.e., a fair play or neutrality agreement), or if the City finds that the 

use of tax increments in connection with the Relocation is in the public interest, which 

means that the business has provided a written affirmation that it is considering moving 

part or all of its operations out of the State and such action would result in either 

significant employment or wage loss in Iowa.  Developer understands and agrees that if it 

sells or leases to a Relocating enterprise in violation of the Relocation Provision, as 

determined by the City in its sole discretion, such action shall be deemed an Event of 

Default under this Agreement, and, in addition to any remedies set forth in Section 10.2: 

 

(i) If Developer received all or a portion of the Development Property from the City 

for less than the full fair market value of the Development Property (“Full Value”), then 

the Developer shall pay the City the difference between the Full Value of the 

Development Property and what the Developer actually paid the City for such property.  

At the request of the City (which request need not be in writing), the Full Value of the 

Development Property shall be established by a licensed, certified appraiser to be selected 

by the City.  Developer shall be responsible for paying any fees or costs associated with 

obtaining such appraisal. 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 

 Section 7.1.  Representation As to Development. The Developer represents and 

agrees that the purchase and improvement of the Development Property, and the other 

undertakings pursuant to this Agreement, are, and will be used, for the purpose of 

development of the Development Property and not for speculation in land holding.  The 

Developer further acknowledges: 

 

(a) the importance of the development of the Development Property to the general 

welfare of the community; 

 

(b) the substantial financing and other public aids that have been made available 

by law and by the City for the purpose of making such development possible; 

and 

 

(c) the fact that any act or transaction involving or resulting in a significant 

change of control of the development, is for practical purposes a transfer or 

disposition of the Development Property then owned and operated by the 

Developer, and the qualifications and identity of the Developer are of 

101



22  

particular concern to the community and the City.  The Developer further 

recognizes that it is because of such qualifications and identity that the City is 

entering into this Agreement with the Developer. 

 

 Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement.  Except as otherwise expressly provided for in Section 7.4, Transfer of 

Interest in Developer or Transfer of Development Property to Permitted Transferees, for 

the foregoing reasons the Developer represents and agrees for itself, and its successors and 

assigns, that in addition to the provisions of Section 6.12 of this Agreement, prior to 

termination of the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) Except only for (i) the purpose of obtaining financing necessary to enable the 

Developer to perform its obligations with respect to making the Minimum 

Improvements under this Agreement, (ii) leases to commercial tenants for all 

or a portion of the Minimum Improvements, and (iii) any other purpose 

authorized by this Agreement, the Developer (except as so authorized) has not 

made or created, and that the Developer will not, prior to the Termination 

Date, make or create, or suffer to be made or created, any total or partial sale, 

assignment, or conveyance, or any trust or power, or transfer in any other 

mode or form of or with respect to this Agreement or the Development 

Property, or any part thereof or any interest therein, or any contract or 

agreement to do any of the same, without the prior written approval of the 

City. 

  

(b) The City shall be entitled to require, except as otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, as conditions to any such approval that: 

 

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial 

responsibility, as determined by the City, necessary and adequate to 

fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by the Developer 

(or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the 

Development Property, such obligations to the extent that they relate 

to such part). 

 

(2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the 

City and in form recordable among the land records, shall, for itself 

and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the 

City, have expressly assumed all of the obligations of the Developer 

under this Agreement and shall have agreed to be subject to all the 

conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in 

the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the Development 

Property, such obligations, conditions, and restrictions to the extent 

that they relate to such part):  Provided, that the fact that any 

102



23  

transferee of, or any other successor in interest whatsoever to, the 

Development Property, or any part thereof, shall, whatever the 

reason, not have assumed such obligations or so agreed, shall not 

(unless and only to the extent otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement or agreed to in writing by the City) relieve or exempt such 

transferee or successor of or from such obligations, conditions, or 

restrictions, or deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any 

rights or remedies or controls with respect to the Development 

Property or the construction of the Minimum Improvements; it being 

the intent of this provision, together with other provisions of this 

Agreement, that (to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity and 

excepting only in the manner and to the extent specifically provided 

otherwise in this Agreement) no transfer of, or change with respect 

to, ownership in the Development Property or any part thereof, or any 

interest therein, however consummated or occurring, and whether 

voluntary or involuntary, shall operate, legally or practically, to 

deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any rights or remedies 

or controls provided in or resulting from this Agreement with respect 

to the Development Property and the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements that the City would have had, had there been no such 

transfer or change. 

 

(3) Except leases to commercial tenants for all or a portion of the 

Minimum Improvements as provided in subsection (a)(ii) of this 

section, there shall be submitted to the City for review all instruments 

and other legal documents involved in effecting transfer; and if 

approved by the City, its approval shall be indicated to the Developer 

in writing. 

 

Provided, further, that in the absence of specific written agreement by the City to the 

contrary, no such transfer or approval by the City thereof shall be deemed to relieve the 

Developer, or any other party bound in any way by this Agreement or otherwise with 

respect to the construction of the Minimum Improvements, from any of its obligations 

with respect thereto. 

 

 Section 7.3.  Approvals.  Any approval of a transfer of interest in the Developer, 

this Agreement, or the Development Property required to be given by the City under this 

Article VII may be denied only in the event that the City reasonably determines that the 

ability of the Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement and its statutory 

duty, as owner, to pay ad valorem real property taxes assessed with respect to the 

Development Property, or the overall financial security provided to the City under the 

terms of this Agreement, or the likelihood of the Minimum Improvements being 

103



24  

successfully constructed and operated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, will be 

materially impaired by the action for which approval is sought. 

 

Section 7.4.  Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of Interest in 

Development Property to Permitted Transferee. Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Sections 7.2 and 7.3, the City and the Developer agree that a transfer of ownership of the 

Development Property to a newly established corporation or limited liability company the 

ownership of which consists solely of the members of Developer (the “Permitted 

Transferee”), shall not trigger the provisions of Section 7.2 or Section 7.3, provided, 

however, that any transfer of the Development Property to the Permitted Transferee shall 

require the Permitted Transferee to agree in writing with the City (a) to expressly assume 

all of the obligations of the Developer under this Agreement, and (b) to agree to be subject 

to all of the conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in the event 

the transfer is of or relates to only part of the Development Property, such obligations, 

conditions, and restrictions to the extent that they relate to such part). Upon execution of 

an agreement in writing by the Permitted Transferee that (a) assumes all of the obligations 

of the Developer under this Agreement and (b) agrees to be subject to all of the conditions 

and restrictions to which the Developer is subject, the transfer of the Development 

Property, or the part thereof, shall be deemed approved upon delivery of such written 

assumption agreement to the City Clerk of the City.  

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; CONDITIONS 

 

 Section 8.1  Conveyance of Development Property.  Subject to hearing and 

authorization required under law, the City shall make a conveyance of title to the 

Development Property to Developer without any additional consideration other than the 

Developer’s covenants as contained in this Agreement. 

 

 Section 8.2  Form of Deed.  The City shall convey clear title to the Development 

Property to the Developer by Quit Claim Deed (hereinafter called the “Deed”).  Such 

conveyance and title shall be subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions 

contained in the Urban Renewal Plan and this Agreement, shall be subject to restrictive 

covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing 

easements of record, but shall otherwise be free and clear of all other liens and 

encumbrances of record. 

 

 Section 8.3. Condition of the Property; Care And Maintenance.  As of Closing, 

Developer agrees to take the Development Property "As Is." The City makes no 

warranties or representations as to the condition of the Development Property.  The City 

and Developer acknowledge and agree that City has undertaken no investigations with 

respect to the suitability of the Development Property for Developer’s proposed uses, 

including but not limited to subsurface investigations regarding the soil conditions of the 

Development Property. Any geological or other inspection of the Development Property is 

104



25  

the sole responsibility of the Developer (at its own cost). Developer waives all claims 

against the City as to the condition of the Development Property.  

 

 Section 8.4. Environmental Matters. At Closing, although not required by law, the 

City may file with the County Recorder’s office a properly executed Groundwater Hazard 

Statement.  Developer takes the property "As Is" with regard to any environmental 

matters.  The City makes no warranties and representations as to the environmental 

condition of the Development Property, other than the information provided in any 

Groundwater Hazard Statement filed by the City at Closing.  Developer shall be 

responsible for securing and paying for all inspections, remediation efforts, or 

documentation required by the county board of health in order to lawfully transfer the 

Development Property to Developer.  Developer agrees to indemnify, release, defend and 

hold harmless the City for all claims, damages or costs relating to the Development 

Property that arise after the Closing Date. 

  

 Section 8.5. Survey and Platting.  Developer shall be responsible for all survey and 

platting of the Development Property.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents 

and contractors access to the Development Property for survey and platting purposes. 

 

 Section 8.6  Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed.  The City shall 

deliver the Deed and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on or 

before the 1
st
 day of October, 2019, or on such other date as the parties hereto may 

mutually agree in writing (the “Closing Date”). 

 

 Section 8.7  Recordation of Deed.  The Developer shall promptly file the Deed for 

recordation among the land records in the office of the Recorder of the County.  The 

Developer shall pay all costs for so recording the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.8  Abstract of Title.  The City shall provide an abstract of title continued 

only to the date of filing of the plat.  It shall be the Developer’s responsibility to pay to 

have the abstract updated.  This abstract shall become the property of the Developer at the 

time of delivery of the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.9  Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property.  The City’s obligation 

to convey title and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on the 

Closing Date shall be subject to satisfaction of the following conditions precedent: 

 

(a) The Developer shall be in material compliance with all the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement; 

 

(b) The Developer shall have furnished the City with evidence, in a form 

reasonably satisfactory to the City (such as a letter of commitment from a 

bank or other lending institution), that the Developer has firm commitments 

105



26  

for financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity 

commitments, to complete the Project in conformance with the Construction 

Plans, or the City shall have received such other evidence of the Developer’s 

financial ability as in the reasonable judgment of the City is required for the 

Project; 

 

(c) Execution of an Assessment Agreement by the City, the County and the 

Developer pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Agreement; and 

 

(e) Receipt of an opinion of counsel to the Developer in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit E.  

   

 Section 8.10 Failure to Commence Construction of Minimum Improvements.  In the 

event the Developer has not made substantial progress towards commencement of 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property by no later than 

December 1, 2019, and commencement of construction does not appear imminent by no 

later than December 1, 2019, then Developer shall have committed an Event of Default 

within the meaning of Article X and Section 10.1 of this Agreement, and shall convey title 

to the Development Property to the City as provided in Section 10.2(d) of this Agreement 

by no later than March 1, 2020. 

 

 Section 8.11.  Partial Property Tax Exemption.  In consideration of the covenants of 

the City as contained in this Agreement, Developer agrees that it shall not seek from the 

County or from the City, any partial or other exemption from taxation of industrial 

property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls Code of 

Ordinances, and/or by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to any portion of the 

Development Property, or the Minimum Improvements located on the Development 

Property.  

 

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

 Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

 

 (a) The Developer releases the City and the governing body members, officers, 

agents, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for purposes of this 

Article IX, the "indemnified parties") from, covenants and agrees that the 

indemnified parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the indemnified parties against, any loss or damage to property 

or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from 

any defect in the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (b) Except for any willful misrepresentation, or any willful or wanton misconduct, 

or any unlawful act, or any negligent act or omission of the indemnified 

106



27  

parties, Developer agrees to protect and defend the indemnified parties, now or 

forever, and further agrees to hold the indemnified parties harmless, from any 

claim, demand, suit, action or other proceedings whatsoever by any person or 

entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from any violation of any 

agreement or condition of this Agreement by the Developer, including but not 

limited to claims for the construction, installation, ownership, and operation of 

the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (c) The indemnified parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the 

persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, servants or 

employees or any other person who may be about the Minimum Improvements 

due to any act of negligence, including a negligent failure to act, of any person, 

other than any act of negligence on the part of any such indemnified party or 

its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

 

 (d) The provisions of this Article IX shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES 

 

 Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be "Events of 

Default" under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is 

used in this Agreement, any one or more of the following events: 

  

 (a) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be commenced and completed pursuant to the terms, 

conditions and limitations of Article III of this Agreement, subject to 

Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (b) Failure by the Developer or its successors to cause the Minimum 

Improvements to be reconstructed when required pursuant to Article III of this 

Agreement. 

 

 (c) Failure by the City to cause the Development Property to be conveyed to the 

Developer pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of Section 8.1 of 

this Agreement, subject to Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (d) Transfer of the Developer's ownership interest in the Development Property or 

any interest of Developer in this Agreement, or the assets of Developer in 

violation of the provisions of Article VII of this Agreement, until the 

Termination Date; 

 

107



28  

 (e) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date, to pay ad valorem taxes 

on the Development Property;  

 

 (f) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date to substantially observe or 

perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to 

be observed or performed under this Agreement; 

 

 (g) The holder of any Mortgage on the Development Property, or any 

improvements thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure 

proceedings as a result of any default under the applicable Mortgage 

documents; 

 

 (h) Sale or lease of the Minimum Improvements or Development Property in 

violation of the provisions of Section 6.12, Relocation, of this Agreement; 

 

 (j) The Developer shall: 

 

  (i) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement, 

composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief 

under the United States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under 

any similar federal or state law; or 

 

  (ii) make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

 

  (iii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become 

due; or 

 

  (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer 

proposing adjudication as a bankrupt or reorganization under any 

present or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state 

law shall be filed in any court and such petition or answer shall not be 

discharged or denied within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof; or a 

receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Developer or the Minimum 

Improvements, or part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceedings 

brought against the Developer and shall not be discharged within ninety 

(90) days after such appointment, or if the Developer shall consent to or 

acquiesce in such appointment; or 

 

 (k) Any obligation, representation or warranty made by any party to this 

Agreement, any Exhibit hereto, or made by any party in any written statement 

or certificate pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to have been incorrect, 

incomplete or misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the 

issuance or making thereof.   

108



29  

 

 Section 10.2.  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 10.1 of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, any party not in default may take 

any one or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice 

to the party in default, and the holder of the Mortgage, of the Event of Default, but only if 

the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days, or if the Event of 

Default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and the party in default does 

not provide assurances reasonably satisfactory to the party giving notice that the Event of 

Default will be cured as soon as reasonably possible: 

 

 (a) The party giving notice may suspend its performance under this Agreement 

until it receives assurances from the party in default, deemed adequate by the 

party giving notice, that the party in default will cure the default and continue 

performance under this Agreement; 

 

 (b) The party who is not in default may withhold the Certificate of Completion;  

 

 (c) The party who is not in default may take any action, including legal, equitable 

or administrative action, which may appear necessary or desirable to recover 

damages proximately caused by the Default, or to enforce performance and 

observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant, under this Agreement. 

 

 (d) In the event the Developer fails to perform any one or more of the material 

obligations described in Article III of this Agreement in a timely manner, 

Developer shall thereupon immediately convey title to the Development 

Property to the City, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject 

to restrictive covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if 

any, and to existing easements, if any.  Developer shall also establish to the 

satisfaction of City and its legal counsel that no labor has been performed and 

no materials have been furnished by any contractor, subcontractor, or any 

other person, firm or entity, in connection with any improvements made to the 

Development Property within the ninety (90) days immediately preceding the 

date of said conveyance.  Developer shall also deliver to City an abstract of 

title covering the Development Property, certified to a date subsequent to the 

date of said conveyance, showing that marketable title to the Development 

Property is vested in Developer and complies with the requirements of this 

subsection.  Developer shall pay to City all general property taxes and special 

assessments, if any, due or to become due with respect to the Development 

Property, continuing until the Development Property is assessed to the City 

and is exempt from assessment for general property taxes by reason of its 

conveyance to and ownership by the City as a tax-exempt governmental body.  

Developer shall pay for all costs associated with conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City, including, but not limited to, abstracting, 

109



30  

recording fees, and reasonable attorneys' fees.  In the event the Developer fails 

to comply with the terms and conditions of this subsection (d) within the thirty 

(30) day period described in Section 10.2 of this Article, then the City may 

proceed as provided in Section 10.2(c) of this Article, to obtain a decree of 

specific performance against Developer for the conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City or, in lieu thereof, at the City’s sole 

discretion, to obtain a judgment for monetary damages to compensate the City 

for the Developer’s default, plus attorneys’ fees and expenses as provided in 

Section 10.5. 

 

 Section 10.3.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 

to the parties is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but 

each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy 

given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall 

impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such 

right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 

expedient.   

 

 Section 10.4.  No Implied Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this 

Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, 

such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to 

waive any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

 

 Section 10.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any 

Event of Default occurs and a party not in default shall employ attorneys or incur other 

expenses for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or 

performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of a party in default 

herein contained, the party in default agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the 

party not in default the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses as may 

be reasonably and appropriately incurred by the party not in default in connection 

therewith. 

 

ARTICLE XI.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 11.1.  Conflict of Interest.  Developer agrees that, to its best knowledge and 

belief, no member, officer or employee of the City, or its designees or agents, nor any 

consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and no other public official of the 

City who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to the 

Project during his or her tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making 

process or gain insider information with regard to the Project, shall have any interest, 

direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be 

110



31  

performed in connection with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is 

part of this Project at any time during or after such person's tenure. 

 

 Section 11.2.  Non-Discrimination.  In carrying out the construction and operation 

of the Minimum Improvements, the Developer shall not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.  The Developer 

shall insure that applicants for employment are employed, and the employees are treated 

during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.   

 

 Section 11.3.  Notices.  Whenever this Agreement requires or permits any consent, 

approval, notice, request, proposal, or demand (collectively, "Notice") from one party to 

another, the Notice must be in writing and shall be effective upon actual receipt by the 

intended recipient, at the following addresses:    

 

DEVELOPER:  Mr. David A. Strickler 

    Manager 

    Strickler Properties, L.C.  

    209 Main Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA 50613    

 

With a copy to:  Dave Mason, Jr. 

    Redfern, Mason, Larsen and Moore, P.L.C. 

    415 Clay Street 

    Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

     

CITY   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    City Administrator 

    220 Clay Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party shall 

have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith.  Any party entitled to 

receive a Notice hereunder may change the address which it previously had specified for 

receiving the same, at any time and from time to time, by delivering a written change 

notice in accordance with the above provisions to the other parties at least five (5) 

business days prior to the effective date of such change. 

 

 Section 11.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections.  Any titles of the several parts, 

Articles, and Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and shall be disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

 

111



32  

 Section 11.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be merged by reason of the delivery of the Deed, and the Deed shall not 

be deemed to affect or impair the provisions and covenants of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 11.6.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

 Section 11.7.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect the 

entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 

and replaces all prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or written.  

This Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by all parties 

hereto. 

 

 Section 11.8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is intended to and shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

 

 Section 11.9.  Termination Date of Assessment Agreement.  This Agreement shall 

terminate and be of no further force or effect with respect to the Minimum Improvements 

on the termination of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as provided in Section 6.1 of 

this Agreement and in the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the form of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 

 Section 11.10.  Memorandum of Agreement.  The parties agree to execute and 

record a Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit F, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of 

this Agreement, and the rights and interests held by the City by virtue hereof.  Developer 

shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

 Section 11.11.  Immediate Undertaking.  All parties agree to undertake immediately 

upon execution of this Agreement all of those obligations which require immediate action. 

 

 Section 11.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture.  The relationship herein created 

between the parties is contractual in nature and is in no way to be construed as creating a 

partnership or joint venture between the Developer and any or all of the other parties. 

 

 Section 11.13.  Captions.  The captions, headings, and arrangements used in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not in any way affect, limit, amplify, or 

modify the terms and provisions hereof. 

 

 Section 11.14.  Number and Gender of Words.  Whenever herein the singular 

number is used, the same shall include the plural where appropriate, and words of any 

gender shall include each other where appropriate. 

112



33  

   

 Section 11.15.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement or any 

agreement contemplated hereby is held to be illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable under 

present or future laws effective during the term of such agreement; then: (i) such provision 

shall be fully severable; (ii) such agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of such 

agreement; and (iii) the remaining provisions of such agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision 

or by its severance from such agreement.  Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, void, 

invalid, or unenforceable provision there shall be added automatically as a part of such 

agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable 

provision as may be legal, valid, and enforceable, whether or not such a substitute 

provision is specifically provided for in such agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

in the event any provision involving material consideration by the City for the benefit of 

the Developer shall be held illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable, then the Developer 

shall have the right to cancel this Agreement, and upon such cancellation, this Agreement, 

in its entirety, shall be rendered null and void; however, in that event, Developer shall 

proceed as described in Section 10.2(d) of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 11.16.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement has been executed in a 

number of identical counterparts, each of which is to be deemed an original for all 

purposes and all of which constitute collectively one agreement, but in making proof of 

this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such 

counterpart. 

 

 Section 11.17.  Authorization.  Each party hereto represents that prior to its 

execution hereof all necessary company, governmental or other appropriate action, as 

applicable, including without limitation resolutions of their governing boards or bodies, 

has been taken to authorize the execution of this Agreement and the performance by such 

party of its respective obligations hereunder. 

 

 Section 11.18.  Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to all 

matters described in this Agreement and related documents.  

 

 Section 11.19.  Survival.  Each provision of this Agreement shall survive the 

occurrence of the other provisions of this Agreement to the extent necessary to ensure full 

performance of said surviving provision. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 

in its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and behalf by its member, all on or as of the day first above written. 

 

113



34  

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk      

       

Strickler Properties, L.C., 

an Iowa limited liability company  

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 David A. Strickler, Manager 

 

 

DEVELOPER 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ss.  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2019, by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2019, 

by David A. Strickler, Manager, Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability 

company. 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 

  

114



35  

EXHIBIT A 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 

 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or 

parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State 

of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 

 

 

  

115



36  

EXHIBIT B 

 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 The Minimum Improvements shall consist of the construction of an Industrial Use 

Office/Storage Facility totaling at least 6,000 square feet of finished space, all as set forth 

in the Construction Plans and being as more particularly shown and in substantially the 

same configuration and scope as the Site Plans attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

 The Developer agrees to connect to the sanitary sewer, storm sewer, natural gas, 

electricity, water, underground telephone cable, internet and any other utilities services 

from their present locations to such location or locations on the Development Property as 

Developer deems appropriate, at its cost.  The Developer also agrees to construct any 

driveway approaches and other paving, at its cost, in accordance with City ordinances.  

 

 The Developer also agrees to perform or cause to be performed all necessary 

grading, land preparation and all necessary building improvements, landscaping, storm 

water detention, signage, and all other site improvements, in all respects in entire 

conformity with all applicable codes and ordinances of the City, all at the Developer's 

cost.  The submittal to City of plans for the construction of said improvements shall be in 

substantial conformity with the following schedule: 

 

Schedule of Performance 

 

Activity to be Completed    Completion Date 

 

Issuance of Building Permit   December 1, 2019 

 

Substantial Completion     November 1, 2020 

 

Issuance of Occupancy Permit   November 1, 2020 
 

 

116



 

37  

EXHIBIT C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2019 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and Strickler Properties, L.C.,  (hereinafter 

called the "Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of 

business at 209 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; did on or about the _____ day of 

_______________, 2019, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to develop and maintain certain real property 

located within the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and 

restrictions with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated 

Developer to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance 

with the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Developer performed said covenants and conditions insofar as they 

relate to the construction of said Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed by the City 

to be in conformance with the approved building plans to permit the execution and 

recording of this certification. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Agreement, this is to certify that all covenants 

and conditions of the Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer and its 

successors and assigns, to construct the Minimum Improvements have been completed 

and performed by Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever terminated 

insofar as they apply to the land described herein.  The County Recorder of Black Hawk 

County is hereby authorized to accept for recording and to record the filing of this 

instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the 

covenants and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the construction of the 

Minimum Improvements. 

 

117



 

38  

 All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect 

until termination as provided therein. 

 

 (SEAL)    THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

             James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

                         )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK )  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2019, by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

  

118



 

39  

EXHIBIT D 

 

MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of this _________ day of 

______________, 2019, by and among the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, (the "City"), and 

Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability company, (the "Developer"), and the 

COUNTY ASSESSOR for the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa (the "Assessor"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, on or before the date hereof the City and Developer have entered into an 

Agreement for Private Development dated as of ______________________________, 2019 (the 

"Agreement") regarding certain real property located in the City legally described as: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 
 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that pursuant to said Agreement, the Developer will 

undertake the development of the Development Property, which is within the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 403.6(19) of the Code of Iowa, 2019, as amended, the 

City and the Developer desire to establish a minimum actual taxable value for the facilities 

thereon to be constructed by the Developer pursuant to the Agreement (defined therein as the 

"Minimum Improvements"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Assessor have reviewed the preliminary plans and 

specifications for the Minimum Improvements which it is contemplated will be erected. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Minimum Assessment Agreement, in 

consideration of the promises, covenants and agreements made by each other, do hereby agree as 

follows: 

 

 1.   Upon substantial completion of construction of the above-referenced Minimum 

Improvements by the Developer, but no later than January 1, 2021, the minimum actual taxable 

value which shall be fixed for assessment purposes for the Minimum Improvements to be 

constructed on the Development Property by the Developer and the land that together comprise 

the Development Property, shall be not less than Seven Hundred Twenty One Thousand Six 

Hundred Seventy Five Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($721,675.00) (hereafter referred to as the 

"Minimum Actual Value") until termination of this Minimum Assessment Agreement.  The 

parties hereto expect that the construction of the above-referenced Minimum Improvements will 

be completed on or before November 1, 2020. 

 

119



 

40  

 Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive the Developer's rights under Iowa Code Section 

403.6(19) to contest that portion of any actual taxable value assignment made by the Assessor in 

excess of the Minimum Actual Value established herein, or any actual taxable value assignment 

made by the Assessor to the Minimum Improvements or to the 1.25 acres of land, which together 

comprise the Development Property.  In no event, however, shall the Developer seek to reduce 

the actual taxable value assigned below the Minimum Actual Value established herein during the 

term of this Agreement. 

 

 2.   The Minimum Actual Value herein established shall be of no further force and effect 

and this Minimum Assessment Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2031. 

 

 3.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be promptly recorded by the Developer 

with the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  The Developer shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

 4.   Neither the preambles nor provisions of this Minimum Assessment Agreement are 

intended to, or shall be construed as, modifying the terms of the Agreement between the City and 

the Developer. 

 

 5.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 

the successors and assigns of the parties, and all holders of mortgages upon or security interests in 

the Development Property, including the land and the Minimum Improvements,   to secure any 

loans with respect to the Development Property, including the land and the Minimum 

Improvements. 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

Strickler Properties, L.C. 

An Iowa limited liability company  

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 David A. Strickler, Manager 

 

 

 
 

 

 

120



 

41  

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

       ) ss:   

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2019, by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

                       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2019, by David A. Strickler, Manager, Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability 

company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

  

121



 

42  

 

CERTIFICATION OF ASSESSOR 

 

 The undersigned, having reviewed the plans and specifications for the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed and the market value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements, and being of the opinion that the minimum market value contained in the 

foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement appears reasonable, hereby certifies as 

follows:  The undersigned Assessor, being legally responsible for the assessment of the 

property described in the foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement, upon completion 

of Minimum Improvements to be made on it and in accordance with the Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, certifies that the actual taxable value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements and the 1.25 acres of land on which such Minimum Improvements are to be 

constructed, which together comprise the Development Property, upon completion shall 

not be less than $721,675.00, until termination of this Minimum Assessment Agreement 

pursuant to the terms hereof. 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      County Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                       )  ss. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 Subscribed and sworn to before me by _______________________________, 

County Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 
 

 

122



 

43  

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

Attn: City Clerk 

City Hall 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

RE: Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa and Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

 As counsel for Strickler Properties, L.C.  (the "Developer"), and in connection with 

the execution and delivery of a certain Development Agreement (the "Development 

Agreement") between the Developer and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") dated 

as of ________________, 2019, we hereby render the following opinion: 

 

 We have examined the original certified copy, or copies otherwise identified to our 

satisfaction as being true copies, of the following: 

 

(a) The certificate of organization and operating agreement, together with 

all amendments thereto, of the Developer; 

 

(b) Resolutions of the members of the Developer at which action was 

taken with respect to the transactions covered by this opinion; 

 

  (c) The Development Agreement; 

 

and such other documents and records as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a 

basis for the opinions set forth herein. 

 

 Based on the pertinent law, the foregoing examination and such other inquiries as we 

have deemed appropriate, we are of the opinion that: 

 

 1. The Developer has been duly organized and is validly existing as a limited 

liability company under the laws of the State of Iowa and is authorized to do business in 

the State of Iowa.  The Developer has full power and authority to execute, deliver and 

perform in full the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement; 

and the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement have been 

123



 

44  

duly and validly authorized by action of the members, have been executed and delivered 

by an authorized manager of the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution 

and delivery by the City, are  in full force and effect and are  valid and legally binding 

instruments of the Developer enforceable in accordance with their  terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws relating to or 

affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Developer of the 

Development Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, and the carrying out of 

the terms thereof, will not result in violation of any provision of, or in default under, the 

certificate of organization and operating agreement of the Developer or any indenture, 

mortgage, deed of trust, indebtedness, agreement, judgment, decree, order, statute, rule, 

regulation or restriction to which the Developer is a party or by which it or its property is 

bound or subject. 

 

 3. To our knowledge and after inquiry to Developer, there are no actions, suits 

or proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer in any court or 

before any arbitrator or before or by any governmental body in which there is a reasonable 

possibility of an adverse decision which could materially adversely affect the business 

(present or prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the Development 

Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, or the Developer's ability to perform 

its obligations thereunder. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

REDFERN, MASON, LARSEN, & MOORE, P.L.C. 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 

 Dave Mason, Jr., Attorney at Law 

       415 Clay Street 

 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

  

124



 

45  

EXHIBIT F 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2019 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and Strickler Properties, L.C.,  (hereinafter 

called the "Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of 

business at 209 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, did on or about the _____ day of 

______________, 2019, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (the "Plan"), to develop certain real property located within 

the City and within the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

and as more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 1.25 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"), and  

 

 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the ___ day of 

___________, 2019, and terminates on the 31st day of December, 2031, with respect to 

the Development Property, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement referring 

to the Development Property and their respective interests therein.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private 

Development shall serve as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions 

restricting conveyance, development and use of the Development Property and the 

improvements located and operated on such Development Property, and contains 

provisions dealing with the dollar amount of the minimum taxable value of the 

Development Property for general property tax purposes, and the length of time during 

which said minimum assessed value continues in effect, as provided for in Section 

403.6(19), Code of Iowa. 

 

 2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments 

thereto, if any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone 

125



 

46  

making any claim against any of said Development Property in any manner whatsoever 

shall be fully advised as to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto, as if the same were fully set forth herein.   

 

 3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if 

any, shall be maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the 

office of the City Clerk, City Hall, Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development on the ______ day of _______________________, 

2019. 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

               James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

Strickler Properties, L.C. 

an Iowa limited liability company. 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 David A. Strickler, Manager 

 

 

  

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2019, by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

126



 

47  

STATE OF IOWA    )  

      )  ss: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2019, 

by David A. Strickler, Manager, Strickler Properties, L.C., an Iowa limited liability 

company. 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 
 

127



QUIT CLAIM DEED 
THE IOWA STATE BAR ASSOCIATION 

Official Form No. 106 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

Preparer Information:  (Name, address and phone number) 

Taxpayer Information: (Name and complete address) 

Return Document To: (Name and complete address) 

Grantors: Grantees: 

Legal description:   

Document or instrument number of previously recorded documents: 

© The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 
    IOWADOCS®   

Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
Phone: (319) 273-8600

Strickler Properties, L.C., 209 Main Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613

Strickler Properties, L.C., 209 Main Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Attn:  David Strickler

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa Strickler Properties, L.C.

See Page 2

128



  
Form No. 106, Quit Claim Deed 

Revised January 2016 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

© The Iowa State Bar Association 2019 
IowaDocs®  

 For the consideration of __________________________________ Dollar(s) and other valuable 

consideration, _______________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ do hereby 

Quit Claim to _______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________ all our right, title, interest, 

estate, claim and demand in the following described real estate in __________________ County, Iowa: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 

share in and to the real estate.  Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be 

construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the 

context. 

 Dated: __________________________ 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 

          (Grantor)             (Grantor) 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 

          (Grantor)             (Grantor) 

 

 

__________________________________   __________________________________ 

          (Grantor)             (Grantor) 

 

STATE OF______________________, COUNTY OF______________________ 

 This record was acknowledged before me on _______________________, by ______________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________. 

 

 

___________________________ 

Signature of Notary Public 

One

Black Hawk

IOWA BLACK HAWK

Strickler Properties, L.C.

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

James P. Brown
as Mayor and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

This deed is exempt according to Iowa Code 428A.2(6).
Lot 3, West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; subject
to the conditions, covenants and restrictions contained in that certain Agreement for Private Development
entered into between Grantor and Grantee herein, and further subject to the conditions, covenants and
restrictions contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Cedar Falls
City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 (Ordinance No. 1923),
amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 (Ordinance No. 2122), amended a
second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time
by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by
Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18,
2016, amended a sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), and
amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 and further subject to restrictive
covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of record.

129



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2950 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 
ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION CONSISTING 

OF A 30,000 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY ACOH, LLC, LOCATED 

AT 6601 DEVELOPMENT DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real estate 
by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with said 
exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial Property, of 
Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ACOH, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 30,000 square foot 
industrial use manufacturing and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be constructed on 
property owned by ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
legally described as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and the 
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5

th
 day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 

since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 

130



estate by new construction of an approximate 30,000 square foot industrial use 
manufacturing and office facility to be constructed by ACOH, LLC, on property owned by 
ACOH, LLC, located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described 
as: 
 
Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the proper and 
timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County Assessor is that of 
the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is eligible to be exempt from 
taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 
 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1
ST

 CONSIDERATION: August 5, 2019 

2
ND

 CONSIDERATION:  

3
RD

 CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
  James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
   
_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 

131



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2952 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 20,600 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE LAB AND OFFICE 
FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY FN INVESTORS, 

LLC, LOCATED AT 3019 VENTURE WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by 
ordinance provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added 
to real estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of 
Iowa, with said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for 
Industrial Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FN Investors, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 20,600 
square foot industrial use lab and office facility by December 31, 2019, to be 
constructed on property owned by FN Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and 
the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 5th day of August, 2019, and more than thirty (30) days have elapsed 
since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

132



 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of an approximate 20,600 square foot industrial use lab 
and office facility to be constructed by FN Investors, LLC, on property owned by FN 
Investors, LLC, located at 3016 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as: 
 
Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.6 
acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2019, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED: August 5, 2019 

1ST CONSIDERATION: August 5, 2019 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 
  ________________________ 
ATTEST: 
 

 
 

James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

_______________________________   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   
 

133



 

 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. _2953_ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1923, 2122, 

2461, 2696, 2785, AND 2923, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL 

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR 

ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE AMENDED 

CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN 

RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 

FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 

FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, DIKE-NEW HARTFORD 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 

DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 

OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 

ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 

ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE AMENDED CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

AREA (AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 

UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 

PLAN) 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has heretofore, in 

Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923, provided for the division of taxes within 

the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 

Area"), pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, taxable property now has been added to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Area through the adoption of Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is 

anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project activities within the 

amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing 

needs of redevelopment within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of 

the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described 

in the premises. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, THAT: 

 

134



 

 -2- 

Ordinance Number(s) 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 are hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

 

Section 1. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following 

meanings: 

a) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, 

State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 

Renewal Area approved by Resolution No. 8196 on the 12th day of November, 1990, which 

Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

b) Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) means that 

portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the 

Cedar Falls Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) approved 

by Resolution No. 10,224 on the 13
th

 day of November, 1995, which Area includes the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 

and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 

P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 

 

And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 

 

And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 

corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 

Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

135



 

 -3- 

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 

Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 

 

Except that portion described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 

Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 

North Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 

Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 

3
rd

 Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 

extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 

1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 

corner of Viking Hills 2
nd

 Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 

of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 

Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 

thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 

of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 

distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 

of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 

line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 

thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 

west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 

c) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) means that portion of 

the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls 

Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) approved by Resolution No. 

13862 on the 17
th

 day of November, 2003, which Area includes the lots and parcels located 

within the area legally described as follows: 

 

The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-

half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 

 

Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 

Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 

the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 

(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; 

 

Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 

Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 

Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

 

136



 

 -4- 

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 

South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 

seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 

1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 

89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 

Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 

seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 

Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 

South 0039’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 

distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 

thence North 0039’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 

right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 8919’13” East on the present 

South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 

beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

 

A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 0039’19” 

East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 

feet; thence South 8919’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 

8054’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 

Viking Road; thence North 0040’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 

line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 8919’13” East on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 

point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 

road right-of-way. 

 

Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 

assumed to bear South 0039’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

137



 

 -5- 

 
d) Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) means that portion 

of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Northern 

Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) approved by Resolution No. 16,631 on 

the 28
th

 day of September, 2009, which Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area 

legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 

part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 

Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 

along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 

Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 

to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 

East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 

thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 

to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 

said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 

Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 

 

e) Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 1 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 18,377 on the 10
th

 day of December, 2012, which Amendment No. 1 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 

of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 

East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

138



 

 -6- 

Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 

Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 

said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 

line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5
th

 Principal Meridian, 

City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 

said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 

Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 

Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 

on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 

Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

described as follows: 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 

Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 

Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 

270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 

Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 

on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 

corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 

Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 

Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 

139



 

 -7- 

 

A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa, described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 

South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 

of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 

the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 

Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 

Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 

Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 

Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 

of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 

an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 

Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 

the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-

way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 

Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 

of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 

the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-

of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 

Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 

to the point of beginning. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 

14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 

Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 

the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 

140



 

 -8- 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 

present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 

Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 

Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 

Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 

to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 

Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-

of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 

the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 

State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 

P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 

prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 

of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 

parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 

Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 

Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-

way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-

of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 

line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 

North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 

present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 

Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-

way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 

Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 

Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 

Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 

East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 

the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-

way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 

141



 

 -9- 

of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 

East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 

Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 

14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 

Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 

Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 

to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 

619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 

Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 

Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 

Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-

way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 

line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-

of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 

prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 

vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 

Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 

of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 

the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 

Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 

the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 

Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 

Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 

Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 

Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 

property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 

Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-

of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-

way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 

Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 

of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 

line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 

Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 

Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 

plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 

Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 

142



 

 -10- 

Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 

(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 

Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 

to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 

Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 

to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 

present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-

way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-

of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 

Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 

550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 

line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 

Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 

Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 

of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 

13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 

South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 

Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 

on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 

Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 

41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 

Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-

way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 

Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 

58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 

beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

And also, 

 

From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 

the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 

18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 

Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 

Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 

Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 

143



 

 -11- 

Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 

Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 

Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 

Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 

Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 

West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 

line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-

way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 

218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 

being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 

center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 

Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 

line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 

Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 

Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 

Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 

Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 

in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 

 

f) Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

g) Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 

 

h) Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,079 on the 7
th

 day of May, 2018, which Amendment No. 4 Area removed the lots and 

parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 

D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 

the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 

144



 

 -12- 

 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 

of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 

Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 

 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 

the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 

Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 

South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 

 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 

South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 

 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of Technology Parkway; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 35; 

 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 

Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 

5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 

of said Section 36; 

 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 

corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 

way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 

right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 

Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 

point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 

Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 

in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 

Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 

the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 

of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 

145



 

 -13- 

thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 

Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 

Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 

Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 

Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 

Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 

Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

and also, 

 

South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 

follows: 

All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 

Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 

South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 

of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 

the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 

 

and also, 

 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 

of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 

North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 

 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 

 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 

of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 

 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 

extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 

said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 

line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 

East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 

Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 

right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

146



 

 -14- 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 

of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 

Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 

Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 

to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 

said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 

Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 

of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 

right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 

said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 

3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 

of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 

 

i) Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 5 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 

No. 21,368 on the 17
th

 day of December, 2018, which Amendment No. 5 Area includes the lots 

and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 

Viking Road ROW (North side): 

The South thirty-three (33) feet of Section twenty-seven (27), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, except that part of Viking 

Road right of way contained within the city limits of Cedar Falls lying in the 

Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of said Section twenty-seven (27);  

 

And also, 

 

S Union Road ROW (West side): 

The East thirty-three (33) feet of the North three-quarters (3/4) of Section 

thirty-three (33), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

and the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East thirty-three (33) feet of Section 

twenty-eight (28), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West, 

except the South thirty-three (33) feet of the East three hundred and twenty-eight 

and ninety-two hundredths (328.92) feet; 

147



 

 -15- 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section thirty-four (34), Township 

eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West; 

 

And also, 

 

The Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of 

Section thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) 

West, except West Viking Road Industrial Park Phases 1 & 2; 

 

And also, 

 

The North one-half (N1/2) of the Southwest Quarter (SW1/4) of Section 

thirty-four (34), Township eighty-nine (89) North, Range fourteen (14) West. 

 

j) Amended Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, included 

within the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, the Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal 

Area Amendment No. 1 (1995), the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 

(2003), the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), the Amendment 

No. 1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the Amendment 

No. 5 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, except the portions 

removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, which Amended Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally 

described in Subsections (a)-(i). 

 

Section 2. The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended Area, legally 

described in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, County of Black Hawk, 

Iowa, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, Dike-New 

Hartford Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective 

date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 3. As to the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, that portion of the taxes which 

would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing 

districts taxing property in such Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable 

property in such Area as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 1989, being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1923, shall be allocated to and 

when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 

district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The taxes so determined shall be referred 

herein as the "base period taxes" for such area. 

As to Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1995) Amendment No. 1 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 1994, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the 

effective date of Ordinance No. 2122, minus the total assessed value shown on the assessment 

148



 

 -16- 

role as of January 1, 1994 for the taxable property removed from the area by Amendment No. 4 

to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area.   

 

As to Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) Amendment No. 2 Area, 

base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 

the assessment roll as of January 1, 2002, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such 

area as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2461. 

 

 As to the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), that portion 

of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for 

each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in 

such Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 2009, such date being January 1 of 

the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, State of 

Iowa, certified to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, 

indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue for such Area. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2012, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2785. 

 

 As to Amendment No. 5 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 

assessment roll as of January 1, 2018, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 

as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes for the 

Amended Area, determined for each sub-area thereof as provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, 

shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the special tax increment fund previously 

established by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 

monies advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including 

bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred 

by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban 

renewal projects undertaken within the Amended Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as 

amended, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment 

levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2  and taxes for the 

instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 

257.19  (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) 

taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; (iii)  taxes imposed under 

Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other 

exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable property within 

the Amended Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 5. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the areas 

of the Amended Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the areas shown 

by the assessment rolls referred to in Section 3 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and 

collected upon the taxable property in the Amended Area shall be paid into the funds for the 

149



 

 -17- 

respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 

property taxes. 

Section 6. At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and 

indebtedness of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 4 hereof have been 

paid, all monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended Area 

shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all 

other property. 

Section 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 

construed so as to continue the division of taxes from property within the various subareas, under 

the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as authorized in Ordinance No. 1923, 

2122, 2461, 2696, 2785, and 2923 as amended by this Ordinance.  Notwithstanding any 

provisions in any prior Ordinances or other documents, the provisions of this Ordinance and all 

prior Ordinances relating to the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, shall be construed to continue 

the division of taxes from property within the Amended Area to the maximum period of time 

allowed by Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.  In the event that any provision of this 

Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or 

application of this Ordinance which shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions 

of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with reference to the Amended Area and the territory 

contained therein. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

INTRODUCED:     August 5, 2019   

PASSED 1
ST

 CONSIDERATION:   August 5, 2019   

PASSED 2
ND

 CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3
RD

 CONSIDERATION:      

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

 

150



 

 -18- 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 

approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2019, 

signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2019, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 

Falls Courier on ____________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

01596006-1\10283-163 

151



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: August 9, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Charles Blair-Broeker Library Board of Trustees (fills vacancy) 06/30/2022 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 

 
 

152



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 
Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 
273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement. 
 
 
Name: Charles                       T.                    Blair-Broeker                    Gender: Male Date: January 18, 2018 
              First                             MI                             Last     

Home Address: 2301 Sunset Blvd.                                                                Phone:  __________________ 

Work Address: Retired (Cedar Falls High School)                                         Phone: __________________ 

Email Address: ctb-b@cfu.net                                                                        Cell: (319) 504-6987 

Employer:  Hawkeye Community College       Position/Occupation: Part-time adjunct instructor (psychology)   

I am also the co-author of a high school psychology textbook for Bedford, Freeman, Worth Publishers. The 
4th edition of our book is slated for publication in January, 2019. 
 
If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 39 years                                     Ward: 5 

NOMINEE FOR: Library Board of Trustees  

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 
voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of 
involvement, and any offices or leadership positions held.) 
 
• I have extensive involvement at the national level in initiatives related to high school psychology. This 

involvement includes: 
o Chair of the Executive Board of the American Psychological Association’s Teachers of 

Psychology in Secondary Schools (1994). 
o Co-author of the first National Standards for High School Psychology Curricula (1999). 
o Test Development Committee member for the College Board Advanced Placement Psychology 

Examination (1993-1996) 
o Participant in the evaluation of student essay responses on the Advanced Placement 

Psychology Examination as a reader, table leader, rubric master, and question leader (1992-
2017). 

o Presenter at over 50 national and regional conferences, institutes, and workshops. 
• Throughout my teaching career, I had many opportunities to serve the Cedar Falls Community School 

District. Among these are about a dozen building and district committee assignments, a stint as Social 
Studies Department chair (2010-2012), and a variety of roles within the Cedar Falls Education 
Association (including chief negotiator in the early 1990s).  

• In the 1980s, I served the Cedar Valley Unitarian Universalist Society in a number of capacities, 
including Board president. 

 
SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 
training, licenses and certificates that are applicable.  
 

None. 

 
List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

 

153



Libraries have enriched my life since I was a boy. This is an opportunity for me to give something back. I 
can contribute hard work, a willingness to listen and learn, wholehearted support for public libraries in 
general (and ours in particular), a level head, and, occasionally, good humor. 
 
Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 
out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 
please describe. 
 

No. 
 
Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  
50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com.  
 

City of Cedar Falls 
 

CEDAR FALLS LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Nominee’s Questionnaire 

 
 

1. Why would you like to serve on the Cedar Falls Library Board? 
 
I have watched and admired my wife, Lynn, as she served on the Library Board for many years. 
She is about to step down, and this is a chance for me to continue our family’s advocacy for a 
comprehensive and vibrant public library. 
 

2. What are you views on the importance of a library in a community? 
 
The library is an intellectual, recreational, and social center in the community. It is a gateway to 
information and personal growth. I cannot imagine a more important local institution for any 
community. 
 

3. The Cedar Falls Library is owned by the City of Cedar Falls. What are your views on the role 
of the Library Trustees keeping the City informed and involved in Library operations? 

 
The Library Trustees have an obligation to keep the city informed. Additionally, they should invite 
involvement on the part of the city.  
 

4. Library Trustees have full operational and fiduciary responsibility managing the Library. 
What experience do you have in the areas of personnel management, financial operations, 
litigation, business operation, and risk management? 

 
Forty years in the classroom have honed my personnel skills.  
 
I have had experiences in financial operations as the Social Studies Department chair at Cedar 
Falls High School, the chair of the American Psychological Association Teachers of Psychology in 
Secondary Schools, and the co-principal investigator of a half million dollar National Science 
Foundation grant that funded a month-long summer institute for high school psychology teachers 
that ran for three years at Northern Kentucky University.  
 
I have no specific experience in business management, but I do have a pretty good sense of 
organizations and bureaucracy.  
 
I have no experience in litigation or risk management. 

154



 
5. What are your views on customer service? 

 
I’m not sure exactly what you’re asking me. I believe the library should provide the best customer 
service possible. 
 

6. Do you believe that all Library should be offered free of charge or should there be 
reasonable fees for select programs and services that extend beyond basic Library 
offerings? 

 
The Preamble of the Constitution indicates that one of the purposes of the federal government is 
“to promote the general Welfare.” I believe this extends to all levels of government. Libraries, like 
parks, should be freely available to all citizens. I worry sometimes that citizens who can least afford 
these kinds of public services will be denied access if fees are imposed. 
 
On the other hand, I am a realist. Funding is limited. If it comes down to a choice of not offering a 
“select program or service” at all or offering it with a reasonable fee requirement, I would favor the 
fee. 
 

7. What role do you feel a Trustee and Library Director should play fund raising to support 
Library operations? 

 
I think fund raising goes with the territory for both the Director and for Trustees. 
 

8. What role do you believe federal and state grants play in the operation of a Library? 
 
I don’t know much about potential federal and state grant opportunities, but the library would be 
foolish not to pursue available grants aggressively.  
 

9. Do you have a view regarding the sharing of services with the Waterloo Library, including a 
Library Director? 

 
The two libraries, as well as other libraries in the Cedar Valley, should be willing to explore 
potential avenues of cooperation. I think that sharing a Library Director worked pretty well for both 
Cedar Falls and Waterloo, but that time has passed and I don’t envision it happening again in the 
immediate future. 
 

10. Should the Library operate under the same personnel and financial policies as the City and 
should services between the City and Library be coordinated? (examples include: building 
maintenance, ground maintenance, telephone services, computer operations and janitorial 
services) 

 
I am reluctant to make extensive comments because I do not know enough about most of the 
City’s personnel and financial policies.  
 
I don’t see inherent difficulties in coordinated services. The problem is not so much coordination in 
areas like maintenance and janitorial services, it is in ensuring quality. Nor do I see a problem with 
coordinated telephone and computer services as long as those services meet the particular needs 
of library staff and patrons. 
 
           Charles Blair-Broeker                                           January 18, 2018 
  Signature       Date 

155



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

August 5, 2019 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:10 p.m. on August 5, 
2019, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland.   Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Jon Forster from 
Wantman Group, Inc. (WGI) and Charles Blair-Broker also attended as well as 
members of the community. 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Library Board of Trustee Interview – Charles Blair-Broeker.  Mr. Broeker introduced 
himself and stated he has been a member of the community since the 1970’s.  A brief 
discussion was held. 

The Mayor introduced the second item on the agenda College Hill Parking Study.  
Mayor Brown introduced Jon Forster from WGI.  Mr. Forster reviewed the College Hill 
Parking Study; he stated they have held two public input meetings, taken an online 
survey, taken parking counts prior to the end of the school year for UNI.  He stated the 
parking demand is market driven by UNI; the center of campus is closer to city owned 
parking than UNI parking.  He reviewed the current parking conditions.  He stated good 
policy and enforcement are key to a good parking enforcement program.  Mr. Forster 
reviewed the recommendations and stated these should be phased in through short 
term and long term plans.   Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion from Council.   Mr. 
Forster answered questions from the council stating a goal should be to get students to 
use the UNI parking lots, he stated the UNI parking ramp is metered only and otherwise 
available to UNI staff only.   He also stated the City will have software to help do 
periodic parking counts to monitor the situation.  Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of 
Finance & Business Operations stated they will receive help from Community Main 
Street, and College Hill Partnership will create a subcommittee for parking.  Daryl Kruse 
motioned for staff to implement the recommendations in the College Hill Parking Study. 
David Wieland seconded the motion.   The motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda Information Systems Update.  
Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager stated the City of Cedar Falls has a 
mobile app to connect the city to its citizens and visitors.  She explained it now available 
for download for both Apple and Android users.  She gave a demo of the mobile app.  
Ms. Sorensen introduced Cory Hines, GIS Analyst.  Mr. Hines reviewed information on 
the park and recreation maps.  He stated there was a lot of work done for the migration 
of the three cemeteries and people will be able to do research on the maps.  A brief 
discussion was held.   

The Mayor introduced the forth item On-Street Parking of Trailers.  City Attorney Kevin 
Rogers stated this was last reviewed in February 2018 and at that time no changes 
were made.  He reviewed the current city ordinances.  He also explained what other 
municipalities do.  He reviewed the recommendations, adding definitions as defined in 
Iowa Code 321.  He stated there should be a time limit and to allow for loading and 
unloading. He stated Section 23-372 is vague as currently written not defining the types 

156



of vehicles or what gross capacity is referring to hauling or towing capacity. He also 
explained what other municipalities prohibit from parking on streets and their time limits.  
Mr. Rogers reviewed the staff recommendation to the Code of Ordinances; which 
includes a list of specific types of trailers from State of Iowa Code Section 321, which 
will be prohibited from parking on a public street or right-of-way, unless they are in the 
act of loading or unloading or actively engaged in an authorized service or activity.  
Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion from Council.  They discussed an exception 
for loading and unloading recreational vehicles. It was also discussed prohibiting in 
residential and mixed use zoning.   Mr. Rogers stated monitoring a distance and time 
enforcement will be hard to enforce and monitor.  Daryl Kruse reviewed his 
recommendation which will continue to be enforced by complaints and should eliminate 
the games people are doing by moving the vehicle a few feet to reset the 48-hour clock.  
Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety Services/Police Chief, reviewed the process his 
staff uses to monitor the complaints they receive.  Daryl Kruse motioned to have staff 
amend the Code of Ordinances Section 23-366 for parking restrictions of trailers to 
change the continuous period of no more than 48 hours on a public street or right-of-
way and after this time the trailer must be moved no less than 2500 feet from the 
original location.  Frank Darrah seconded the motion.  After council discussion on what 
does a vehicle include, Daryl Kruse amended the motion to remove section 23-372 from 
the ordinance, which references the vehicles with a gross capacity of one ton or more 
shall not park upon the streets or municipal parking lots of the city.  Mark Miller 
seconded the amendment. Council discussion was held concerning the parking fines.  
Chief Olson stated a ticket is issued with a minimal fee as well as towing is an option.   
The Mayor put the question on the amendment.  The motion passed as amended. (Aye: 
Blanford, Darrah, deBuhr, Kruse and Miller; Nay: Green and Wieland)  The Mayor put 
the question on the original motion.  The motion passed. (Aye: Blanford, Darrah, 
deBuhr, Kruse and Miller; Nay: Green and Wieland)  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll. David Wieland 
moved to approve the bills and two payrolls as presented, Daryl Kruse seconded the 
motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:47 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

157



158



159



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 15, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 

b) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

d) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

e) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

f) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 

g) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

h) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - renewal. 

i) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - new. 

j) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Special Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - 5-day permit. 

160



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Revised Job Classifications – Housing Program Specialist and                

                        Community Services Coordinator  

 
Attached are revised job classifications for the Housing Program Specialist and 
Community Services Coordinator. With turnover in our housing area, we decided to 
take the opportunity to update the job classifications for those positions to better reflect 
the duties performed in that area. We also wanted to take the opportunity to create two 
levels of positions in that area to recognize that one position will serve in more of a 
coordinator role.  After approval of the job classifications, we will begin the search for 
staffing in the housing area.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the job classifications, please feel free to contact 
Stephanie Sheetz or myself.  
 
 
 

161



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   1 

 
Job Title Community Services 

Coordinator 
 Job Code 233 

Department Community Development  Pay Band  

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 1/19/1995  Adopted 6/12/1995 

Amended 7/1/1999, 6/23/2014, 11/17/2014, 10/3/2016, 8/19/19 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Perform various administrative, analytical and technical duties related to the Housing Choice Voucher 
Program (Section 8) and Community Development Block Grant programs; to conduct research on 
programs and grants available to the community and prepare reports; to provide professional staff 
assistance to the Community Development Department and the City’s Housing Commission.  
Responsible for coordinating the planning and implementation of programs and policies of the agency, 
and to ensure efficient and effective administration and execution of all agency business. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general supervision from the Planning and Community Services Manager. 
 
May exercise some functional or technical supervision over Housing Program Specialist or part-time 
housing programs staff.  
 
May serve as lead worker over Housing Program Specialist  or part-time housing and planning staff. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Compile and report, within established guidelines, Section 8 rental assistance and CDBG 
activities to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 
 

 Explain various housing programs to landlords and tenants including Section 8 rental assistance,  
and housing rehabilitation programs; answer questions and provide general information to 
potential program qualifiers; advise current program participants. 

162



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   2 

 

 Coordinate and monitor tenant selection and placement, within established guidelines, including 
but not limited to conducting program applicant interviews to determine eligibility, initial and 
annual income verification, and establishing and maintaining a waiting list for eligible participants. 
 

 Monitor, and perform if necessary, inspections of buildings and grounds to ensure compliance of 
landlord maintenance requirements.  Such duties to include Housing Quality Standards 
inspections, notifying owners of deficiencies and repairs needed to meet minimum housing 
standards, perform interim and final inspections during all phases of construction. 
 

 Perform re-inspection of failed housing units; conduct quality control inspections for the Section 8 
rental assistance program and apply Housing Quality Standards to section 8 units. 
 

 Prepare and submit various reports and funding requests for program participation and progress; 
maintain accurate records; compile and prepare a variety of correspondence to applicants 
regarding the availability of rental units; inform landlords when units fail Housing and Urban 
Development requirements. 
 

 Negotiate rent; process lease and contract agreements; explain the significance of agreements to 
landlords and tenants; process damage and vacancy loss claims.  Serve as the agency’s 
contracting officer. 
 

 Investigate and resolve housing related complaints, conflicts and problems of tenants, property 
owners, staff and the general public.  
 

 Prepare and develop marketing materials regarding the various federal housing programs; 
conduct presentations and informational sessions. 
 

 Provide regulatory information to prospective landlords regarding participation in the Section 8 
rental assistance program; inform Section 8 program participants about portability requirements; 
send and receive participants to and from other Housing Authorities. 
 
 

 Interpret and implement regulatory changes to the federal housing programs.  Reviews and 
implements regulations and notices from governmental and regulatory agencies and responds to 
such in a timely manner. 
 

 Coordinate with Financial Services to prepare accurate and timely housing assistance payments 
(HAP) to landlords; calculate payments and pro-rated payments; assemble supporting 
documentation and process for distribution; prepare and execute repayment agreements for 
payments; maintain a log for the agreements and repayments; and submit repayment funds to 
Financial Services for processing and deposit. 

 

 Perform daily financial management and provide unit months leased report to Financial Services 
for monthly reporting. 
 

 Prepare budget and financial statements related to Community Development Block Grant 
programs; monitor and maintain records of CDBG program revenues and expenditures; provide 
appropriate financial documentation for CDBG audits.   

163



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   3 

 

 Interpret, implement, and administer the Housing Choice Voucher program according to Federal, 
State, and City regulations. 
 

 May perform various duties related to the administration of the Community Development Block 
Grant program, which may include reports, maintaining policies and procedures, conducting 
required steps to implement projects such as environmental review and project eligibility, 
monitoring service agency awards, preparing contracts, liens, and related documents to meet 
legal and regulatory requirements, or calculating and approving payments to contractors.  
 

 Leads, motivates, and provides training for agency staff. 
 

 Establishes positive working relationships with representatives of community organizations, other 
governmental agencies and associations, and communicates with other City departments. 
 

 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend professional association meetings; keep up to date on latest developments in federal 
housing assistance programs; monitor activities of federal and state governments related to 
funding of housing and community development programs. 

 Prepare and present materials and monthly division staff reports to the Housing Commission.  
Serve as Commission Secretary and maintain minutes, files, and records.  Make 
recommendations to the Commission regarding the adoption of new policies, changes to existing 
policies, and implement and administer upon approval. 

 Assist division personnel in writing periodic reports to comply with grant requirements. 

 Monitor paper work connected with grant-funded programs. 

 May administer and evaluate the Cedar Falls Utilities Assistance Program, including the tracking 
of and auditing of program funds; prepare marketing materials to encourage citizens to 
participate; prepare and submit the program's annual report. Make recommendations to the utility 
Board regarding adoption of new policies, changes to existing policies, and implement and 
administer upon approval. 

 Perform other duties as assigned.  
 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Principles and procedures related to the Federal Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) 
and Federal Community Development Block Grant Program. 

164



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   4 

 Principles and policies of urban and community development. 
 

 Building materials, structures and structural requirements, and mechanical functions in relation to 
a residential setting. 
 

 Methods, materials and equipment used in residential construction. 
 

 Federal and state grant application and administration processes. 
 

 Fair housing laws and other pertinent Federal, State and local laws, rules, codes and regulations. 
  

 Principles and practices of accounting, budgeting, personnel management, and public relations. 
 

 Principles and procedures of filing and record keeping.  
 

 Basic real estate principles. 
 

 Principles and procedures of business letter writing and report preparation. 
 

 Principles and procedures related to comprehensive housing programs. 
 

 Section 8 program administration (i.e. Housing Choice Voucher or current program).  
 

 Laws underlying general plans, zoning, and land divisions.  
 

 Modern office methods, practices, and computer equipment. 
 

 Basic understanding of the structure and processes of local government. 
 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Perform housing inspections and determine needed repairs to meet minimum housing standards. 
 

 Analyze and compile technical and statistical information and prepare reports. 
 

 Interpret and explain minimum housing codes. 
 

 Compile, compare and present mathematical information and calculate variables, formulas and 
proportion variables. 

 

 Use a variety of equipment and supplies involved housing and grant administration, including a 
computer and computer aided grant software. 

 

 Understand and carry out oral and written directions. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

165



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   5 

 Interpret and apply pertinent Federal, State and local laws, codes and regulations pertaining to 
federal housing programs.   

 

 Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work. 

 

 Effectively handle a work environment and conditions which involve working independently.  
 

 Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with respect, 
firmness, and tact. 
 

 Train and give direction to staff. 
 

 
 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Two to five years of practical experience in Housing Choice Voucher program administration, other 
housing programs, regional or community development, social service program administration,  rental 
inspection and code enforcement, or a related field. 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university in in business administration, public 
administration, management, social work, accounting, or a related field and  two years of experience in 
Section 8, housing programs, regional or community development, code enforcement, or a related field. 

 
OR 
 

High school diploma or equivalent supplemented by additional coursework/skills in a related field as noted 
above, and  five years of experience in Housing Choice Voucher Program administration, other housing 
programs, regional or community development, rental inspection and code enforcement, or a related field.    
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license required. 
 
Inspector Certification from the Iowa Association of Housing Officials or related certifications as required 
by HUD preferred. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 

166



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   6 

Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and 
photocopiers; occasional exposure to outdoor weather conditions. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for light lifting, walking, 
sitting or standing for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for 
prolonged periods of time. 
 

167



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   1 

 
Job Title Housing Program Specialist  Job Code 230 

Department Community Development  Pay Band  

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 1/19/1995  Adopted 6/12/95 

Amended 7/1/1999, 6/23/2014, 11/17/2014, 6/18/18, 8/19/19 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Perform various administrative, analytical and technical duties related to the Housing Choice Voucher 
Program (Section 8) and Community Development Block Grant programs; to conduct research on 
programs and grants available to the community and prepare reports; to provide professional staff 
assistance to the Community Development Department and the City’s Housing Commission.   
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general supervision from the Community Services Coordinator and Planning and Community 
Services Manager.  
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Explain various housing programs to landlords and tenants including Section 8 rental assistance 
and housing rehabilitation programs; answer questions and provide general information to 
potential program qualifiers; advise current program participants. 

 Conduct applicant interviews to determine eligibility for program assistance; conduct initial and 
annual income verifications of housing program participants; maintain waiting list for families 
eligible for program assistance. 

 

 Perform inspections to determine housing conditions; notify owners of deficiencies and repairs 
needed to meet minimum housing standards; perform interim and final inspections during all 
phases of construction and rehabilitation. 
 

 Perform re-inspection of failed housing units; conduct quality control inspections for the Section 8 
rental assistance program and apply Housing Quality Standards to section 8 units. 

168



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   2 

 

 Prepare various reports for program participation and progress; maintain accurate records; 
compile and prepare a variety of correspondence to applicants regarding the availability of rental 
units; inform landlords when units fail Housing and Urban Development requirements. 
 

 Negotiate rent; process lease and contract agreements; explain the significance of agreements to 
landlords and tenants; process damage and vacancy loss claims. 
 

 Assist in investigating and resolving housing related complaints, conflicts and problems of 
tenants, property owners, staff and the general public. 
 

 Prepare and develop marketing materials regarding the various federal housing programs; 
conduct presentations and informational sessions. 
 

 Provide regulatory information to prospective landlords regarding participation in the Section 8 
rental assistance program; inform Section 8 program participants about portability requirements; 
send and receive participants to and from other Housing Authorities. 
 

 Assist in interpretation and implementation of regulatory changes to the federal housing 
programs. 
 

 Assist in preparation of financial information related to Section 8 and Community Development 
Block Grant programs; monitor and maintain records of housing program revenues and 
expenditures; provide appropriate financial documentation for housing program and CDBG 
audits. 
 

 Assist in implementing the Community Development Block Grant programs which may include 
conducting required steps to implement projects such as environmental review and project 
eligibility, monitoring service agency awards, preparing contracts, liens, and related documents to 
meet legal and regulatory requirements, or calculating and approving payments to contractors.  
 

 Conduct pre-bid meetings for housing rehabilitation projects; review project feasibility; review and 
negotiate bids; prepare contracts, liens, and related documents to meet legal and regulatory 
requirements; calculate and approve payments to contractors; maintain and update standard 
specifications for rehabilitation construction.  

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend professional association meetings; keep up to date on latest developments in federal 
housing assistance programs; monitor activities of federal and state governments related to 
funding of housing and community development programs. 
 

 Assist in preparation of monthly division activity reports and staff reports to the Housing 
Commission. 
 

 May administer and evaluate the Cedar Falls Utilities Assistance Program; prepare marketing 
materials to encourage citizens to participate; prepare and submit the program's annual report. 
 

169



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   3 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Principles and procedures related to the Federal Housing Choice Voucher Program (Section 8) 
and Federal Community Development Block Grant Program. 
 

 Principles and policies of urban and community development. 
 

 Building materials, structures and structural requirements, and mechanical functions in relation to 
a residential setting. 
 

 Methods, materials and equipment used in residential construction. 
 

 Federal and state grant application and administration processes. 
 

 Fair housing laws and other pertinent Federal, State and local laws, rules, codes and regulations. 
  

 Principles and practices of accounting, budgeting, personnel management, and public relations. 
 

 Principles and procedures of filing and record keeping.  
 

 Basic real estate principles. 
 

 Principles and procedures of business letter writing and report preparation. 
 

 Principles and procedures related to comprehensive housing programs. 
 

 Modern office methods, practices, and computer equipment. 
 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Perform housing inspections and determine needed repairs to meet minimum housing standards. 
 

 Interpret and explain minimum housing codes. 
 

 Use a variety of equipment and supplies involved housing and grant administration, including a 
computer and computer aided grant software. 

 

 Understand and carry out oral and written directions. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Interpret and apply pertinent Federal, State and local laws, codes and regulations pertaining to 
federal housing programs.   

170



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Planner I   4 

 

 Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with those contacted in the course of 
work. 

 

 Handle complex problems and enforce necessary regulations professionally and with respect, 
firmness, and tact. 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Zero to two years of practical experience in Housing Choice Voucher program administration, other 
housing programs, regional or community development, social service program administration,  rental 
inspection and code enforcement, or a related field. 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Associate’s degree from an accredited college or university in in business administration, public 
administration, management, social work, accounting, or a related field with no years of experience in 
Section 8, housing programs, regional or community development, code enforcement, or a related field. 

 
OR 
 

High school diploma or equivalent supplemented by additional coursework/skills in a related field as noted 
above, and  two years of experience in Housing Choice Voucher Program administration, other housing 
programs, regional or community development, rental inspection and code enforcement, or a related field.    
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license required. 
 
Inspector Certification from the Iowa Association of Housing Officials or related certifications as required 
by HUD preferred. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment with exposure to standard office equipment, such as computer screens, phones, and 
photocopiers; occasional exposure to outdoor weather conditions. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position may require maintaining physical condition necessary for light lifting, walking, 
sitting or standing for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for 
prolonged periods of time. 
 

171



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT:  Viking Pump Parking Lot Lease 
 
 
The Mayor has been working with Viking Pump on securing additional public parking in 
the downtown area in what is now the Viking Pump employee and visitor lot at the 
corner of 4th Street and State Street.  The parking lot contains 69 parking stalls that will 
be available for public use.  The parking lot will be open to the public between the hours 
of 5:15 pm and 5:00 am on weekdays, and during all hours on the weekends. 
 
There is no rental fee to be charged to the City.  The City will be responsible for routine 
maintenance and repair of the parking lot during the term of the agreement. 
 
The City will enforce parking regulations in this lot the same as with other municipal 
parking lots. 
 
The proposed Lease agreement is attached, which provides for an initial term of 3 years 
with automatic one year renewals unless terminated by either Viking Pump or the City. 
 
Approval of the attached Parking Lot Lease Agreement is therefore requested. 
 
Thank you. 

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 6, 2019 

Re: 2019-2020 Edward Byrne JAG Grant 

Attached is the 2019-2020 Edward Byrne JAG Grant Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with Waterloo and Black Hawk County. The JAG Grant provides funding to the 
Tri-County Drug Task Force in which we are a member. This MOU allows for the 
distribution of these funds to the three entities. The total grant amount is $58,997 of 
which Cedar Falls will receive $11,820.90. These funds are used to support the task 
force of which a portion of these funds reimburse Cedar Falls for payroll expenses.  

I recommend approval of this agreement.  

180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: August 7, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 12th Street South Ditch Grading 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct the ditch along 12th Street South. The 
project will require the acquisition of temporary easements along the corridor. Plans for 
the project shows the need for acquisitions from approximately six (6) properties. 
 
We recommend that the Council approve and execute Parcel 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6 
Temporary Easement Agreements.  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3164 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, August 13th, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project. One (1) bid was received from Feldman Concrete 
of Dyersville, Iowa in the amount of $155,170.41, which is 45% above the Engineer's 
Estimate of $107,051.73. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
The lack of bidders and the bid being above the Engineer’s estimate is concerning; 
however, the Engineering Division feels it can be attributed to properties spaced over a 
wider area than in the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project. As a result of these findings, 
the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this low bid from Feldman 
Concrete in the amount of $155,170.41. On September 3rd, 2019, the Contract, Bonds 
and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

227



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2019 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3164

BID OPENING: AUGUST 13, 2019 (1)

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.Y. 1,980.90 $6.00 $11,885.40 $20.25 $40,113.23

2 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. 1,795.40 $40.00 $71,816.00 $47.25 $84,832.65

3 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. 185.50 $45.00 $8,347.50 $51.75 $9,599.63

4 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 79.65 $65.00 $5,177.25 $75.00 $5,973.75

5 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 6,434.1 $0.75 $4,825.58 $1.50 $9,651.15

6 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

TOTAL $107,051.73 TOTAL $155,170.41

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
FELDMAN CONCRETE

228



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Third Amendment to Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Prairie Winds 4th Addition 
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Prairie Winds 4th Addition and finds it in 
accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the agreement be 
accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

229



230



231



232



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  JC Enterprises, Inc. – 110 Lincoln Street 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for JC Enterprises, Inc. located at 110 Lincoln 
Street and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends 
the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15th, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Zuidberg NA, LLC. – 2700 Capital Way 
  Lots 21 & 22, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV 
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for Zuidberg NA, LLC located at 2700 Capital Way 
and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division recommends the 
agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at the Black Hawk County 
Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Prairie Winds 4th Addition 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
  Project No. SU-197-3134 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, Panther Farms, LLC, has requested 
Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots in the development. 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., the developer’s engineer, has submitted the 
estimate of remaining costs for completion of improvements. The developer has 
submitted a “Contract for Completion of Improvements” and established a performance 
bond in the amount of $446,767.38 to ensure completion of the project. A copy of the 
Final Plat is attached for your reference. 
  
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concur that the amount of the escrow account is adequate to complete the project.  The 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard forms developed 
by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a Maintenance Bond in the full 
amount of the public improvements that will be on file until final acceptance of the 
project by City Council. We recommend approval of the “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements”. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 14, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project  
  Project No. BR-000-3183 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Minturn, Inc. 
for the construction of the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Minturn, Inc. for the construction of 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project. This project 
involves the repair of various items on eight (8) bridges within the City of Cedar Falls. 
Work will include concrete repair, mill and HMA overlay of approach pavement, 
replacement of expansion joints, and the repairing of bridge decks, bridge medians, and 
handrails. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
  

 
 
 
 

273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2019  
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement No. 4A  
  Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. 
  Prairie Winds 4th Addition    
  Construction Related Services 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) on July 7th, 2015 for construction related services.  
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 4A for the additional construction related engineering services on the Prairie Winds 
4th Addition. 
 
In accordance with subdivision chapter of the City Code, Section 24-5.2 - Inspection 
states that “all improvements shall be inspected to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the 
subdivider, and shall be the actual cost of the inspection to the city.”  The cost of the 
construction related services under this agreement will be billed to the developers. 
 
The Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval of the Supplemental 
Agreement No. 4A with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for construction related 
engineering services during the construction of the public improvements for the 2019 
construction season. If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
att 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 Matthew Tolan, E.I., Civil Engineer II  
  

300



DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              

 
Construction Observation and Testing Services Agreement for  

Prairie Winds 4th Addition 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (Consultant), of Marshalltown, Iowa, dated July 7, 2015 for construction 
observation and testing services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to increase the original not to 
exceed amounts of the Professional Services Agreement outlined above,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. Prairie Winds 4th Addition construction period was assumed to be 16 weeks, with approximately 
20 hours of construction observation per week. Construction began in June 2018.  Estimated 
additional construction observation from 6/14/19 to project completion is 250 hours, not including 
expenses. 

 
B. All other services listed in the Scope of Service shall be provided as originally presented in the 

Professional Services Agreement dated July 7, 2015. 
 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.   
 

A. Total compensation for Prairie Winds 4th Addition is an increase in the not to exceed fee of 
$17,500.00.  

 
III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 

Professional Services Agreement dated July 7, 2015.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

301



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates  Construction Observation and Testing Services 
Project No. 5557  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date:  

Adam C. Daters 

Project Manager 

July 24, 2019 

302



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2019  
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement No. 6A  
  Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. 
  Sands Addition 
  Construction Related Services 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) on July 7th, 2015 for construction related services.  
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 6A for the additional construction related engineering services on the Sands 
Addition. 
 
In accordance with subdivision chapter of the City Code, Section 24-5.2 - Inspection 
states that “all improvements shall be inspected to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the 
subdivider, and shall be the actual cost of the inspection to the city.”  The cost of the 
construction related services under this agreement will be billed to the developers. 
 
The Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval of the Supplemental 
Agreement No. 6A with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for construction related 
engineering services during the construction of the public improvements for the 2019 
construction season. If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
att 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 Matthew Tolan, E.I., Civil Engineer II  
  

303



DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
Construction Observation and Testing Services Agreement for 

Sands Addition, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (Consultant), of Marshalltown, Iowa, dated July 7, 2015 for construction 
observation and testing services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to increase the original not to 
exceed amounts of the Professional Services Agreement outlined above,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. Sands Addition construction period was assumed to be 12 weeks, with approximately 20 hours 
of construction observation per week. Construction began in November 2017. Estimated 
additional construction observation from 5/24/2019 to project completion is 60 hours, not 
including expenses. 

 
B. All other services listed in the Scope of Service shall be provided as originally presented in the 

Professional Services Agreement dated July 7, 2015. 
 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.   
 

A. Total compensation for Sands Addition is an increase in the not to exceed fee of $4,200.00. 
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated July 7, 2015.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

304



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates  Construction Observation and Testing Services 
Project No. 5557  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date:  

Adam C. Daters 

Project Manager 

July 24, 2019 

305



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

  Phone: 319-273-8600 
  Fax: 319-273-8610 

www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 
To:    Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
From:   Lisa Ahern, Planner 1 
Date:  August 14, 2019 
Subject:   Waiting List for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
City Council passed a resolution on July 15, 2019 to open the Waiting List for the Housing 
Choice Voucher (HCV) Program from August 6, 2019 through January 31, 2020.   The 
Waiting List was reopened to replenish the applicant pool for the City’s Preference 1 group, 
which includes elderly households, disabled households and families who live or work in 
Cedar Falls.  
 
Staff opened the Waiting List and began accepting applications on August 6, 2019.  Seventy-
two (72) applications were received within the first two application days, which were held on 
August 6th and August 13th.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Approximately half of the applications received were from applicants in the Preference 1 
group. This is the first group of applicants the City desires to serve. 
 
After the Waiting List was reopened, a staff vacancy in the Section 8 Office was announced.  
Due to this vacancy, there will not be sufficient staffing to continue accepting new 
applications through the January 31, 2020 date.   
 
The Housing Commission met on August 13th to discuss the status of the Waiting List. 
Because a sufficient number of new applications were received and there is a change in 
staffing for the program, the Housing Commission recommended closing the Waiting List at 
this time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Housing Commission recommends that the Waiting List for the HCV program be closed 
until further notice. 

306



RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION TO CLOSE THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program (also known as Section 8) is a 

program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It is the government's 
major program for assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, 
safe, and sanitary housing in the private market.  

 
WHEREAS, individuals apply for the program and are placed on a waiting list.  
 
WHEREAS, applicants are contacted when their name comes to the top of the list and a final 

eligibility determination is made at that time for program admission.   
  
WHEREAS, the Waiting List was reopened on August 6th to increase the number of applicants 

on file in the Preference 1 group. 
 
WHEREAS, 72 new applications were received from August 6 to August 13, with 

approximately half of these applicants in the Preference 1 group;    
 
WHEREAS, the Housing Commission voted on August 14, 2019 in favor of closing the Waiting 

List indefinitely. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA THAT: 

 
The Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program is closed until further notice.    No 

new applications will be accepted at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 ADOPTED this     day of August 19, 2019. 
 
     
            
     James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST 
 
       
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

307



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Dennis Rutledge, Intern / Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sign review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage on storefront 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Heather Stumberg, Your CBD Store Inc.  Contractor: Signs & Design 

LOCATION: 
 

100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107 

 
PROPOSAL  
A new tenant, Your CBD Store Inc, and the property 
owner of 100 E 2nd Street are requesting a site plan 
review for a new wall sign and projecting sign at 100 E 
2nd Street, Suite 107 in the Central Business District 
Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner proposes to install one new wall sign and 
one new projecting sign on the facade of 100 E 3rd 
Street for a new business, Your CBD Store, locating in 
Suite 107. The property is located directly east of the 
200 block of Main Street on the north side of E 2nd 
Street, see image to the right.  
 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council due to 
the fact that this property is located within the Central Business District (Section 26-189). The 
downtown district requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial 
improvement” to an exterior façade, including new signs and awnings. A substantial 
improvement to properties in the Central Business District Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 
(f) and reads as follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 

308



doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

Typically signage is not part of the review process unless the review is mandated by the 
Ordinance. In this case, when a new projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-
of-way the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the 
request. Not all signs are reviewed in this manner. If a sign or projecting sign is simply replaced, 
review of this level is not triggered and a permit can be issued with only staff level review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant is proposing to install a 52” x 96” flush mount wall sign and a 19” x 27” projecting 
blade sign to advertise the new tenant, Your CBD Store. Wall signs within the Central Business 
District cannot exceed ten percent of the total storefront area and all projecting signs shall not 
exceed 40 square feet per sign face (Section 26-189 (j)). The districts signage size 
requirements have been met. Both proposed signs will be placed on the south elevation facing 
E 2nd Street. Neither sign will be lighted. The wall sign will be located above the store’s 
entrance and the projecting sign will be placed next to the entrance 11 feet above the sidewalk 
and will project 1.5 feet into the right-of-way, see images to the right. All projecting signs within 
the Central Business District are required to be at least 10 feet above the sidewalk and cannot 
project further than half the width of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or five feet, 
whichever is less (Section 26-189 (j)(2)). The sidewalk at this location is approximately 10 feet 
wide. The proposed placement of the signs meet city code. If approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, this item will be placed on the next regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. If the City Council approves this request, a sign permit will be issued for the new signs.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the submitted facade plan 
for 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
8/14/2019 

Howard presented the staff report and indicated that that proposed projecting 
sign met the City’s sign code requirements. There were no comments or 
questions from the Commission and no comments from the public.  
 
The Commission voted to recommend approval of the submitted façade plan 
and projecting sign for 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 107 on a 5-0 vote (Holst, 
Leeper, Wingert absent).  

  
 
Attachments:    

Letter of intent, Details of proposed signage 
 

309



 

 

310



 

311



 
 

 

312



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Dennis Rutledge, Intern 

  Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: College Hill Neighborhood Site Plan Review – 1809 College Street 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve a College Hill Neighborhood District Site Plan Review for 
a new single-unit dwelling at 1809 College Street 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

CV Commercial, LLC 
 

LOCATION: 
 

1809 College Street  

 
 

PROPOSAL 
CV Commercial, LLC is proposing to construct a single-unit dwelling on the empty lot of 
1809 College Street. The proposal is for a one bedroom, one bathroom home with 700 
square feet of living space. See images below. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

View of the proposed home from all angles 

313



BACKGROUND 
The lot at 1809 College Street is currently vacant. This property is part of the Auditor 
Rainbows Plat No 3 subdivision, is zoned R-2 Residence District, and falls within the 
College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District. The petitioner is proposing to build a 700 
square foot single-unit dwelling on this lot.  
 
All substantial improvements in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District must be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission as well as City Council. 
Any new construction qualifies as a substantial improvement under Section 26-181 (3): 
“Substantial improvement means any new construction within the district or any 
renovation of an existing structure.” 
 
ANALYSIS 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District has specific requirements for new 
construction within the district. In addition, general zoning requirements for new 
construction must also be followed. The attached submitted plans meet all of the 
minimum College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District and zoning requirements pertaining 
to new development. Details on each requirement are reviewed below. If this single unit 
is approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council, a land use and 
building permit will be required prior to construction.  
 

1) Proposed Use: 
The applicant is proposing to build a single-unit dwelling. CV Commercial LLC’s 
intent is to construct a new high quality affordable housing option in the core of 
Cedar Falls. The R-2, Residence District, permits low density residential 
development. A single unit home is a permitted use in the R-2 District. 
 
2) Lot size: 
The property is zoned R-2, residential district. In this 
district the required lot width for a single unit home is 
60 feet. The lot under consideration is 60 feet wide. 
The lot area required for a single unit home in the R-
2 district is 7,200 square feet. The proposed property 
is 8,100 square feet. The proposed lot area meets 
the R-2 District’s requirements.  

 
3) Building Setbacks: 
The required front yard setback in the R-2 district is 
25 feet. The proposed front yard setback on this 
home is 26 feet. The required side yard setback in 
this district is 10% of the lot width. Since the width of 
this lot is 60 feet, a 6-foot setback is required.  The 
side yard setbacks proposed are 6 feet 6 inches to 
the south and 25 feet 3 inches to the north; see 
image on the right. The rear yard setback 
requirement for the R-2 district is 30 feet. The 

North 

314



proposed single unit home has a rear yard setback of 73 feet. The proposed 
building meets all setback requirements. 
 
4) Building Floor Plans: 
The home will have one bedroom, one full bath, 
a full kitchen, and vaulted ceilings. The home is 
designed with an open living concept. The 
applicant is also proposing concrete patios on 
the front and the back of the house.  A full 
review of the building plans by the City’s 
Building Department will be required prior to 
construction.  

 

5) Parking: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District 
requires single-unit dwellings to have two hard 
surfaced parking stalls per dwelling.  The 
proposed concrete driveway is 12 feet wide and 
63 feet long. The driveway also includes a flare 
out next to the home, widening the driveway to 
22 feet and 3 inches. With this layout this 
property will have room for 3 parking spots; two in tandem in the driveway and one 
in the flare out. The proposed parking meets the requirements.  
 
6) Open Space: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District states that driveways measuring no 
more than 18 feet in width, sidewalks and pedestrian access ways measuring no 
more than six feet in width may be established across the required front and side 
yard areas.  The driveway will have a 12 foot width. Other than the front and rear 
patio areas, the remainder of the lot will remain as open green space. This meets 
all requirements.  
  
7) Building Design: 
The College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District states that materials 
and textures of all new buildings shall 
be compatible with those primary 
design elements on structures located 
on adjoining properties and also in 
consideration of said design elements 
commonly utilized on other nearby 
properties on the same block or within 
the immediate neighborhood. 
Comparable scale and character in 
relation to adjoining properties and other nearby properties in the immediate 
neighborhood shall be maintained by reviewing several design elements. These are 
noted below with a review on how each element is addressed. Photos of some of the 

Layout of Proposed Home 

315



surrounding homes are attached to this report. 
 
 Maintaining Similar Roof Pitch: 

The proposed home will have a shingled pitched roof as shown here. The 
surrounding homes have similar roofs in style and materials.  The roof of the 
proposed home is comparable to those that are around it. 
 
Maintaining Similar Building Height, Building Scale and Building Proportion: 
The maximum height in the R-2 district is 2 ½ stories or 35 feet, whichever is 
less. The proposed home is single story with a height of 16 feet from base to the 
roof peak. The surrounding properties on this block are a mixture of single story 
and two story homes. The proposed size of the home is smaller than most in this 
block but it won’t be the smallest home. 1816 College Street, a neighboring 
structure, has a livable space of 400 square feet as reported by the Assessor’s 
website. The proposed property will have 700 square feet of livable space. The 
height, scale and proportion of the proposed building are compatible with 
other dwellings in the area. 

 
Use of Materials Comparable and Similar to Other Buildings on Nearby 
Properties in the Immediate Neighborhood: 
Five of the seven homes in the immediate area have vinyl siding. The other two 
are brick homes. The proposed home will have white vinyl or cement board 
siding with a masonry base across the front of the home. The proposed 
materials are consistent with the surrounding homes.  

 
Architectural character: 
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District requires that the potential home 
has compatible architectural character to those in the immediate neighborhood.  
While the home has some features that give it a unique character, such as the 
vertical siding pattern and generous horizontal bank of windows along the front 
façade, it is designed as a traditional front-gabled home with a prominent stoop 
and canopy entrance, similar to other homes found in the neighborhood. The 
multiple gables provide character and visual interest and provide the basis for the 
vaulted ceiling on the interior of the home, which will make this small home feel 
more spacious. Many homes on this block have either a front porch or a stoop 
with a canopy that provides weather protection for the front entrance. The stoop 
and canopy entrance of the proposed home is consistent with other homes in the 
neighborhood. The front patio will be an uncovered, concrete pad. This is 
different from other homes in the immediate area. Many homes in the 
neighborhood have a front porch that elevates the usable outdoor space above 
the public sidewalk level to help distinguish the private outdoor space from the 
public space along the street. In this way, a porch provides more privacy for the 
residents of the home, as the first floor is elevated so that passersby cannot look 
directly into the interior of the home. Low planter boxes or other landscaping 
features could be used to provide additional privacy for the front patio.  However, 
with the fairly generous front setback staff finds that the patio as proposed is 

316



acceptable and will provide additional usable outdoor space for the residents.   
Overall, staff finds that the character of the proposed building meets the 
standards and the home will be an attractive addition to the neighborhood. 
 

8) Entrance:  
The College Hill Neighborhood Overlay District has requirements for the entrance of 
a home. Section 26-181, 6, a, states: “The primary front entrances of 
all residential buildings shall face toward the public street. Street frontage wall 
spaces shall provide visual relief to large blank wall areas with the use of windows 
or doorways and other architectural ornamentation.”  As shown in the photos 
above, the proposed entrance to the home faces the street and has traditional 
entranceway features that make it both functional and attractive. The front façade 
has generous window coverage to provide eyes on the street. The proposed 
home meets this requirement.  

 
9) Landscaping: 
The College Hill Neighborhood 
Overlay District Section 26-181, 5, d 
states: “All newly constructed single-
unit dwellings to provide on-site 
landscaping within the required yard 
areas or in other green space areas 
of the property at the rate of 0.04 
points per square foot of total lot 
area of the site under consideration 
for the proposed residential 

development or improvement”. With 
a total lot area of 8,100 square feet, 
the lot will need to provide 324 
points of landscaping. Points are 
calculated based on size and type of 
plants proposed or existing on site. 
The current site has 6 trees, two 
located in the public right of way, 
that are all 4-inch caliper or greater. 
Locations of the trees are shown in the images above. Each of these trees are worth 
100 landscaping points. The applicant is proposing to keep all the existing trees, 
providing 600 landscaping points. If either of the two trees in the right-of-way are 
being considered for removal, city staff will need to be consulted. If the proposed 
location of the home or driveway is determined to endanger any of the existing trees, 
the proposed home or driveway should be shifted to avoid damage to the trees. As 
long as the minimum setbacks are met, this type of change can be approved through 
a staff level review. In addition, the applicant will sod the affected area after 
construction. The landscaping requirements are met. 

  
 

317



10) Storm Water: 
The City Code states that there needs to be 25,000 square feet of impervious 
surface to trigger the need for on-site storm water management for a redevelopment 
site.  This home and its proposed driveway will be 825 square feet total.  This 
requirement does not apply. 

 
Technical Comments: 
City and Cedar Falls Utilities staff has reviewed the submitted site plan. All technical 
comments have been addressed.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the College Hill 
Neighborhood District Site Plan for a new single-unit dwelling at 1809 College Street 
with the following stipulations: 

1) Any additional comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission: 
8/14/19 Discussion and vote 
  
Howard presented the staff report. She indicated that the proposal is for development of 
a small single family house on an infill lot in the R-2 Zoning District in the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay District, so requires P&Z and City Council review. She described 
the zoning requirements and the design review standards that apply. The home meets 
all of the zoning requirements and while the home is small, is designed in a manner that 
fits the character of the area. She noted that the lot contains some mature trees and 
there are several large street trees in the public right-of-way that the developer intends 
to protect and preserve during construction. Howard noted that if any adjustments are 
needed to the plan to avoid damaging the trees, staff would work with the developer to 
administratively approve those changes, such as shifting the location of the driveway or 
the home.  
 
Larson inquired whether a garage was required. Howard indicated that two parking 
spaces are required, but a garage is not a requirement.  
  
The Commission voted to recommend approval of the site plan on a 5-0 vote.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

318



Character of neighboring properties 
 
1803 College St. 

 
 
1804 College St. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

319



 
 
1810 College St. 

 
 
1815 College St. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

320



 
 
1816 College St. 

 
 

321



322



323



324



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, ACIP, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: August 15, 2019  

 SUBJECT: Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary 
Subdivision Plat 

PETITIONER: White Coat Series II, LLC; Engineer: CGA, Inc. 
LOCATION: 

 
The 14-acre property is located west of Apollo Street and north of Pheasant 
Drive.  

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide a 14 acre parcel in the R-P, Planned Residence, zoning 
district with the intent to develop 18 new single-unit residential lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The 14 acres under consideration 
are part of the Pheasant Hollow 
Development and was rezoned from 
A-1 (Agricultural) and R-1 
(Residential) to R-P (Planned 
Residence District) on October 13, 
2003. The rezoning, as required by 
the R-P zoning district, included an 
R-P Site Plan and development 
agreement. These documents 
outlined how this area was to 
develop. An amendment to the 
original R-P Site Plan was approved 
by the City Council on July 21, 2014. 
The amended R-P Site Plan updated the proposed uses allowed in the area (i.e. single unit 
homes and a limited amount of condo units) and reconfigured the layout of the development. 
The proposed preliminary plat is the westernmost section of the plan, outlined in red in the 
image above.  
 
The Pheasant Hollow Development has been growing since 1990. Past approvals and 

Excerpt of the Amended 2014 R-P Site Plan 

325



development in this area include: Pheasant Hollow Addition (42 lots approved in 1990), 
Pheasant Hollow Second Addition (11 lots approved in 1999), Pheasant Hollow Third Addition 
(34 lots approved in 2005), Pheasant Hollow Fourth Minor Subdivision (1 lot in 2014), Pheasant 
Hollow Fifth Minor Subdivision (created several unbuildable parcels within Pheasant Hollow 
Third Addition that were sold to adjoining lot owners in 2015), and Pheasant Hollow Sixth 
Addition (4 lots and a 14-acre “Tract M” that was reserved for future development). The 
preliminary plat, Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition, under consideration proposes to replat 
Tract M of Pheasant Hollow Sixth Addition to create 18 new lots.  
 
Analysis 
The property under consideration is zoned R-P, Planned Residential District. R-P Districts are 
established with a comprehensive development plan. The R-P District site plan for this area was 
originally approved in 2003 and amended in 2014. The applicant is proposing to create 18 new 
single unit homes on 14 acres of land, for an overall density of 1.3 units per acre. The proposed 
preliminary plat is consistent with the approved 2014 R-P District Site Plan.   
 
The R-P District allows the 
establishment of a mixture of 
residential types as well as 
some commercial uses in 
order to create a more 
diverse neighborhood. To 
ensure that the proposed mix 
of uses are integrated 
together in a cohesive 
manner, a master plan is 
required at the time of 
rezoning. Development in this 
particular proposed 
preliminary plat is restricted 
to single unit homes; this is 
consistent with the approved 
2014 R-P District Site Plan. 
Minimum lot area standards 
and required setbacks in the 
R-P District are the same as 
found in the R-4, Residential District. The only difference is that the R-P District allows the 
flexibility for a “zero” side yard setback to meet the layout and building types proposed in the 
master plan. In this case, since only detached single-unit dwellings are proposed, the submitted 
preliminary plat follows all of the R-4 standards, including the side yard setback. The R-4 District 
requires that a single unit lot have a minimum square footage of 6,000 square feet and the 
following minimum setbacks: 20-foot front yard, 30-foot rear yard, and a side yard of 10% of the 
lot width. All 18 of the proposed buildable lots meet these standards. In this particular case, as 
the rear yard of all of the proposed lots are along the district boundary, the required 30 foot 
boundary setback of the R-P District is also met. The minimum required setbacks are shown on 
the plat and echoed in the Deed of Dedication. 
 
Tract A on the preliminary plat will be an extension of Apollo Street, which has an existing 60-
foot right-of-way. This extension will provide access to all 18 proposed lots. The placement of 
the proposed street is consistent with the approved 2014 R-P District Site Plan. 

Excerpt of the proposed Preliminary Plat 

326



 
Tract’s B and D on the preliminary plat are for detention basins. Stormwater easements are 
proposed throughout the preliminary plat to direct storm water runoff to the two detention basins. 
These basins are designed to ensure that the water runoff from the new development is properly 
managed. A 20-foot wide drainage easement is identified along the southern boundary of the 
plat to channel stormwater in this area to Tract B near the southeast corner of the plat. This will 
divert stormwater away from the neighboring properties to the south. A culvert will be 
constructed under the proposed road to connect Tract B to the larger Tract D so to direct any 
overflow on the south side of the development. City engineering staff has reviewed and 
approved the Applicant’s stormwater report. After the preliminary plat is approved, but prior to 
construction of the infrastructure, the City’s engineering staff will review the stormwater 
calculations again to make sure everything is properly located, graded and sized.  
 
None of the area of the preliminary plat falls within the flood plain. However, it should be noted 
that when the land was originally surveyed in 2014 a small wetland was identified on the site.  
However, it was determined this June by the US Army Corps of Engineers that it is not a 
jurisdictional wetland, so mitigation will not be required and the wetland delineation is no longer 
required on the platting documents.  
 
Tract C on the preliminary plat is reserved for 
greenspace. Most of the existing grove of trees on this 
property will be maintained as the applicant sees the 
existing tree coverage as a valuable asset for the 
development. Only the striped areas on the plat, 
shown on the previous page, will need to be cleared 
for grading purposes. An aerial image of the site today 
is shown on the right. 
 
Approval of a preliminary plat would allow the 
developer to proceed with the construction and 
installation of all required public infrastructure such as 
streets, sewers, and other utilities. A final plat, which 
legally creates all the lots and any tracts, will follow. 
No lot sales or new home construction can begin until a final plat is approved by the City 
Council. A final plat cannot be processed through the Commission until infrastructure 
construction plans (streets, utilities, etc.) are approved by the City Engineering Division. 
 
Basic platting documents have been submitted including the Deed of Dedication, Auditor 
approval of the subdivision plat name, $300 platting fee, Certificate of Survey, environmental 
report/soil survey, and a drainage/grading plan. The attorney’s title opinion must be submitted 
for the final plat. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that water, gas, and 
communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. The placement of water hydrants will be reviewed when the 
construction plans are completed. All technical comments have been addressed 

 
 

327



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
8/14/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Pheasant Hollow Seventh 
Addition Preliminary Plat. Acting Chair Saul introduced the item and Mr. Sturch 
provided background information. He explained that the property is located at the 
west end of Apollo Street. This plat will accommodate 18 lots for single family 
development and satisfies the R-P district standards and the City’s storm water 
management regulations. Staff recommends approval of the plat with conformance to 
all City staff recommendations and requirements as well as any comments or 
direction from the Commission. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat is consistent with the zoning, 
the adopted R-P District Site Plan for this area, and meets the standards of the City’s 
subdivision code. The Community Development Department recommends approval. 
 
 

  

 

328



Pheasant Ridge
Golf Course

Walters Ridge
Golf Course

Wynnewood Dr

Pheasant Dr

Thresher Ct

Paddington Dr

C
re

sc
e
n
t
D

r

H
a

rv
e

s
t 
L

n

W
4

th St

Fieldstone Blv
d

Shock
e
r

R
d

Berr y
H

i ll
R

d

S
he

lle
y

L
n

K
a
s
p
e
n

d
P

l

W
in

d
i n

g
R

i d
g
e

R
d

Birdsall P
ark

D
r

Apollo St

S
an

da

hlwoodC
ir

Apol lo St (Planned)

N
 U

n
io

n
 R

d

W 1st St

U
n
io

n
 R

d

C-1

R-1 R-1C-1

R-1

R-1

R-5

R-1SU

RP

R-1

R-4

RP

A-1

A-1

®¬57

Cedar Falls City Council
August 19, 2019

Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition
Preliminary Plat

Cedar Falls
Rainbow Dr

W 18th St

C
ent e

r
S

t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

H
u

d
s
o
n

R
d

M
a
in

S
t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Viking R
d

University Ave

Orchard Dr

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

E Greenhill Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St
N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

r s
e

e
R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W
G

re
e

n
hill Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

329



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 1
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
8-

15
-1

9 
- 1

0:
18

am
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
1 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 6-03-2019

LEGEND

SIGN

X X X X

105

W (*) W

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

G (*) G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

T(*) T

T T OWNERS OF RECORD
PHEASANT HOLLOW HOLDINGS INC
9055 BEAVER MEDAOWS LANE
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: RP (RESIDENTIAL PLANNED)

WHITE COAT SERIES II, LLC
4426 WYNNEWOOD DRIVE
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  50613

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
TRAVIS R. STEWART, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SURVEY LEGEND
GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )     RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #17162
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/ORANGE PLASTIC ID CAP #17162

AS NOTED ON PLAN

PROJECT
LOCATION

FLOOD ZONE
(ZONE X )
PANEL # 19013C0161F
EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 18, 2011

DATE PREPARED: AUGUST 15, 2019

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
TRACT "M" PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA FILE NO 2018-8122.

SETBACK DATA
FRONT YARD = 20 FT
REAR YARD =  30 FT
SIDE YARD* = 10% LOT WIDTH AT THE FRONT SETBACK LINE

*LOTS MAY BE SPLIT OR DIVIDED TO PROVIDE FOR MORE LOT
AREA BY BEING ADDED TO AN ADJOINING LOT.  SIDE YARD
SETBACKS SHALL BE BASED ON OWNERSHIP/PROPERTY LINES
RATHER THAN PLATTED LOT LINES.

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

MAILBOX NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH

ALL USPS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR WILL CONSULT WITH THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3. ALL CLUSTER MAILBOXES SHALL BE PLACED IN
THE R.O.W.

330



59.04'

LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

M

M M

M

M

TV

M

M

P

M

TM

TV
TTVTVTVTVTT

TTTV

X

X

X

OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E

X

X

X X X

StS(D) StS(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

T T T T T T T T T T

San(D) San(D) San(D)

G(
D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D) E(
D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)
E(D)

E(D
)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)
E(D)E(D)E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

TVTV

TV

TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV TV TV
FO FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

NW CORNER
SE1/4 NW1/4
SECTION 27-89-14
SET 58" REBAR

687.39'
S89°57'10"E

76
.5

7'
S

6°
37

'2
1"

W

56
.7

5'
S3

7°
08

'56
"W

99.44'
S

2°43'15"E

100.11'
S31°07'37"E

119.59'
S

12°12'49"E

14
8.

97
'

S
8°

21
'1

5"
W

83.82'
S

4°15'30"E

117.61'
S89°44'46"E

60
.1

6'
S

0°
04

'0
0"

W

43.16'
S89°50'17"E

13
4.

92
'

S
0°

07
'3

9"
W

870.24'
N89°53'15"W

848.75'
N

0°03'14"W

FND 5/8"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND CUT "X"
ON ROCK

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ YELLOW CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC

CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC
CAP NO. 7811

APOLLO STREET

StS
StS

StS
StS

St
S

StSStS

StS

StS

St
S

StS

San
San

San
San

San

SanSanSanSanSan

TRACT "A"

TRACT "B"

TRACT "C"

TRACT "D"

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E E E E

E
E

E

E

GGGGGG
G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

20' STORM SEWER
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

30
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
N

D
U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

20
' D

RAIN
AGE A

ND

UTILI
TY E

ASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
(S

E
E

 N
O

TE
S

)

EX
. 6

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

10' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYPICAL)

PROPOSED 4'
WALK

59.77'

20
1.

84
'

221.51'

144.41'

61
.2

9'
90

.3
3'

60.85'

19
9.

70
'

85.86'

136.76'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

16
3.

90
'

224.88'

194.39'

193.85'

193.77'

150.16'
30.46'

16
2.

09
'

30.55'

199.97'

199.99'

160.83'
42.91'

18
1.

15
'

19
9.

70
'

109.98'90.80'

85
.4

7'

11
.5

4'

0.82'

60
.0

0'
R

.O
.W

.

31.00'
B/B

144.92'
63

.8
5'

261.42'

215.45' 148.49' 100.00' 100.00' 136.75' 109.80'

14
7.

41
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

11
0.

50
'

18
9.

30
'

131.89'

72
.3

0'

110.00'

100.00'100.00'

10
0.

00
'

18
.1

4'

90
.3

3'
90

.3
3'

11
.4

1'

167.97' 166.18'

14.54'
85.31'

80.80'

86.07'

94.07'

9.21'

257.12'

93.42'

60.19'

99
.0

1'

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR

GRADING (TYP.)

61.50'

40
.0

0'

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20' ACCESS
EASEMENT

(SEE NOTES)

R48.00'
R59.00'

5.84' 5.
97

'

TRACT "C"

STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT

RIPARIAN AREA TO
REMAIN UNDISTURBED
AS NEEDED FOR STORM
SEWER INSTALLATION

AND MAINTENANCE

RIPARIAN AREA TO REMAIN
UNDISTURBED AS NEEDED FOR
STORM SEWER INSTALLATION

AND MAINTENANCE

159.39'

12
2.

37
'

45
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

53
' S

TO
R

M
S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

EX
. 4

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

30' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

30'

30'

40' S
A

N
ITA

R
Y

S
E

W
E

R
 A

N
D

 U
TILITY

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR
GRADING (TYP.)

CLEARING AND
GRUBBING AREAS FOR

GRADING (TYP.)

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T 
S

E
TB

A
C

K

MAILBOX CLUSTER

20' UTILITY
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' U

TI
LI

TY
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

120'60' 180'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 2
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
8-

15
-1

9 
- 1

0:
18

am
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
2 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 06-03-2019

NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT GRADING.
· TRACT "A" IS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE

DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.
· TRACT "B" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

EXCAVATION.
· TRACT "C" SHALL BE RESERVED FOR GREEN

SPACE (STORM SEWER GRADING WILL TAKE
PLACE WITHIN THIS TRACT).

· TRACT "D" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
EXCAVATION.

· TRACTS "B", "C", "D", AND "E" SHALL ALL HAVE
BLANKET EASEMENTS TO ALLOW FOR ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE.

· SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

· LOT 11'S DRIVEWAY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
SOUTHERN SIDE DUE TO THE SANITARY MANHOLE
STRUCTURE

LOT FRONTAGE AT 30'  SETBACK

LOT NUMBER ACTUAL DISTANCE
OF SETBACK (FT.)

CHORD DISTANCE (FT.)
(STRAIGHT LINE)

1 109.86 109.86

TRACT "B" 136.76 136.76

2 100.00 100.00

3 100.00 100.00

4 105.40 104.68

5 99.07 98.48

6 95.57 95.03

7 94.15 93.63

8 100.00 100.00

9 100.00 100.00

10 133.78 123.15

11 84.14 81.04

12 80.35 77.65

13 135.53 122.81

14 90.33 90.33

15 90.33 90.33

16 222.24 199.98

17 100.00 100.00

18 110.00 110.00

TRACT "C" 83.58 83.58

40' x 61.5'
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

EX. WALK

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

331



LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

M

M M

M

M

TV

M

M

P

M

TM

TV
TTVTVTVTVTT

TTTV

X

X

X

OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E OH E

X

X

X X X

StS(D) StS(D)

San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D) San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

Sa
n(

D)
Sa

n(
D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

San(D)
San(D)

T T T T T T T T T T

San(D) San(D) San(D)

G(
D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D) G(D) G(D)

G(D)
G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

G(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(
D) E(
D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)

E(D) E(D)
E(D)

E(D
)

E(D)
E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)E(D) E(D) E(D) E(D)
E(D)E(D)E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

E(D)

E(D)

E(
D)

TVTV

TV

TV

TV TV TV TV TV TV TV TV
FO FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO FO

FO

FO

NW CORNER
SE1/4 NW1/4
SECTION 27-89-14
SET 58" REBAR

687.39'
S89°57'10"E

76
.5

7'
S

6°
37

'2
1"

W

56
.7

5'
S3

7°
08

'56
"W

99.44'
S

2°43'15"E

100.11'
S31°07'37"E

119.59'
S

12°12'49"E

14
8.

97
'

S
8°

21
'1

5"
W

83.82'
S

4°15'30"E

117.61'
S89°44'46"E

60
.1

6'
S

0°
04

'0
0"

W

43.16'
S89°50'17"E

13
4.

92
'

S
0°

07
'3

9"
W

870.24'
N89°53'15"W

848.75'
N

0°03'14"W

FND 5/8"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND CUT "X"
ON ROCK

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2"
REBAR

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ RED CAP NO. 16775

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ YELLOW CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2"
IRON PIPE

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC

CAP NO. 7811

FND 1/2" IRON PIPE
W/ ORANGE PLASTIC
CAP NO. 7811

APOLLO STREET

StS
StS

StS
StS

St
S

StSStS

StS

StS

St
S

StS

San
San

San
San

San

SanSanSanSanSan

TRACT "A"

TRACT "B"

TRACT "C"

TR
A

C
T 

"D
"

PROPOSED 4'
WALK

215.45' 148.49' 100.00' 100.00' 136.75' 109.80'

20
1.

84
'

14
7.

41
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

11
0.

50
'

18
9.

30
'

221.51' 131.89'

144.41'

61
.2

9'
90

.3
3'

72
.3

0'

60.85' 110.00'

19
9.

70
'

85.86'

136.76'100.00'100.00'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

13
5.

00
'

16
3.

90
'

28
4.8

5'

224.88'

194.39'

193.85'

193.77'

150.16'

16
2.

09
'

199.97'

199.99'

160.83'

42.91'

18
1.

15
'

19
9.

70
'

109.98'90.80'

85
.4

7'
10

0.
00

'

11
.5

4'
90

.3
3'

90
.3

3'

0.82'

14.54'
85.31'

80.80'

86.07'

94.07'

9.21'

257.12'

60
.0

0'
R

.O
.W

.

31.00'
B/B

167.97' 166.18'

144.92'
63

.8
5'

261.42'

928
929

930

935

940
943

942

939
940

941

942

943

944

945

946

947

948

949

951

952

953

95
4

955

960

964

94
2

94
0

93
5

93
0

92
5 92

3

92
3

92
5 93

0
93

0
92

8

955

95
0

94
5

94
0

939

93
8

935 93
5

955

95
0

945

93
9

93
9

93
7

93
7

4.0:1

EX
. 6

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

EX
. 4

0'
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y

SE
W

ER
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

59.04'

E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

E

E E E E

E
E

E

E

GGGGGG
G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

30.46'
30.55'

18
.1

4'

11
.4

1'

93.42'

60.19'

99
.0

1'

R48.00'R59.00'

31.86' 31
.7

5'

TRACT "C"

59.77' 54
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

159.39'

12
2.

37
'

LOT 1
LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17

M

LOT 2

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16
LOT 17 LOT 18

M

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

WWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWW

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

San San

W

StS

StS

StS

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT SETBACK

30
' R

E
A

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
20

' F
R

O
N

T 
S

E
TB

A
C

K

20' STORM SEWER AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

20
' D

RAIN
AGE A

ND

UTILI
TY E

ASEMENT

20' STORM
SEWER

EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' A

C
C

E
S

S
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
(S

E
E

 N
O

TE
S

)

10' ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

20' PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT

(TYPICAL)

20' ACCESS
EASEMENT

(SEE NOTES)

30' DRAINAGE AND
UTILITY EASEMENT

30'

30'

40' S
A

N
ITA

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R

A
N

D
 U

TILITY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

45
' S

TO
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

30
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 A
N

D
U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

20' UTILITY
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20
' U

TI
LI

TY
A

N
D

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

120'60' 180'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

74
8\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
74

8 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 S

he
et

 3
 o

f 3
.d

wg
 - 

Sh
ee

t 3
 o

f 3
 - 

 0
8-

15
-1

9 
- 1

0:
18

am
 - 

sj
c3

25

CGA PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION
3 OF 3

5748

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA PRELIMINARY PLAT
MJS

SJC 06-03-2019

EX. WALK

PRELIMINARY PLAT
PHEASANT HOLLOW SEVENTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF TRACT "M", PHEASANT HOLLOW SIXTH ADDITION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

40' x 61.5'
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

NOTES
THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL
CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT GRADING.
· TRACT "A" IS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE

DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.
· TRACT "B" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

EXCAVATION.
· TRACT "C" SHALL BE RESERVED FOR GREEN

SPACE (STORM SEWER GRADING WILL TAKE
PLACE WITHIN THIS TRACT).

· TRACT "D" STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
EXCAVATION.

· TRACTS "B", "C", "D", AND "E" SHALL ALL HAVE
BLANKET EASEMENTS TO ALLOW FOR ACCESS
AND MAINTENANCE.

· SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

· LOT 11'S DRIVEWAY SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
SOUTHERN SIDE DUE TO THE SANITARY MANHOLE
STRUCTURE

LOT FRONTAGE AT 30'  SETBACK

LOT NUMBER ACTUAL DISTANCE
OF SETBACK (FT.)

CHORD DISTANCE (FT.)
(STRAIGHT LINE)

1 109.86 109.86

TRACT "B" 136.76 136.76

2 100.00 100.00

3 100.00 100.00

4 105.40 104.68

5 99.07 98.48

6 95.57 95.03

7 94.15 93.63

8 100.00 100.00

9 100.00 100.00

10 133.78 123.15

11 84.14 81.04

12 80.35 77.65

13 135.53 122.81

14 90.33 90.33

15 90.33 90.33

16 222.24 199.98

17 100.00 100.00

18 110.00 110.00

TRACT "C" 83.58 83.58

332



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Subdivision Plat 

PETITIONER: 
 

Panther Farms LLC – owner; CGA Engineers – Civil Engineer 

LOCATION: 
 

16.65 acres west of Hudson Road north of Prairie Winds 1st Addition 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to final plat a portion of the Prairie Winds Subdivision in the R-1, 
Residence Zoning district, and create 43 standard residential lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Prairie Winds Subdivision falls 
within an R-1, Residence Zoning 
district. In March 2013, the 
preliminary plat for the subdivision 
was approved by City Council. The 
preliminary plat encompasses 
71.10 acres and plans for the 
creation of 173 residential lots. 
Due to the size of the 
development, a developmental 
“phasing plan” was approved with 
the Preliminary Plat. Since then 
there have been a number of 
adjustments to that phasing plan. 
The most recent version was 
created in 2014, see attachments. The phasing plan addresses future traffic access 
issues related to this subdivision as well as with the adjacent northern subdivision, 
Prairie West. The two subdivisions (Winds and West) are coordinated to establish second 

333



routes of access. Final Plats for “Phase 1”, “Phase 2” and “Phase 3” of the larger Prairie Winds 
Preliminary Plat have been approved by City Council in 2013, 2014, and 2017, respectively. 
Panther Farms LLC is now looking to plat “Phase 4”, Prairie Winds 4th Addition. This final plat 
would allow for the development of the last remaining portion of the Prairie Winds preliminary 
plat east of Ironwood Drive. See image below showing the approved Final Plats of this 
subdivision and the area currently under consideration. Note that the lots being platted in the 
proposed Prairie Winds 4th Addition are slightly different than those shown on the phasing plan. 
This is due to sanitary sewer not being fully installed along Ashworth Drive at the time of the 
Prairie Winds 3rd Addition Final Plat approval.  
 

 
 
An updated timeline for development for this subdivision is as follows: 
 

Phase Timeline Number of Lots 

1 Final platted 2013 40 

2 Final platted 2014 4 

3 Final platted in 2017 13 

4 Now 43 

5 As market supports 73 

 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned R-1, Residential, which permits single-unit and two-unit residences. 
Minimum lot width is 75 feet for single-unit homes and 80 feet for two-unit homes. In the case of 
narrower dimensions at the front of the lot, the minimum width can be established at the 30-foot 
building setback line. Minimum lot area is 9,000 square feet for single-unit homes and 10,000 
square feet for two-unit homes. All proposed lots meet these requirements. It is anticipated the 

Prairie Winds 4th Addition 

Prairie Winds 1st Addition 

Prairie Winds 

3rd Addition 

Prairie Winds 

2nd Addition 

334



predominant development pattern will be detached single-unit homes.   
 
The Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat creates 43 buildable lots.  It includes a continuation of 
a 60-foot-wide right-of-way for Reese Road, Ashworth Drive, and Kara Drive, Tract “A”. The 
layout of the proposed final plat is consistent with the approved corresponding portion of the 
Preliminary Plat. Utilities are readily available to this site. The developer will coordinate with 
CFU for extending the utility services to the proposed development.    
 
Cluster mailboxes, according to USPS standards will be sized and placed in the ROW according 
to USPS standards. All cluster mailboxes will be located on lower volume streets and situated 
so as to prevent undue traffic congestion according to the direction from the City Engineer’s 
office. The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the previously 
approved Deeds of Dedications from the previous additions.  The Deed of Dedication also 
addresses the responsibility of the owners of lots 12 and 13 to maintain the right-of-way 
between their lots and Hudson Road. 
 
It should be noted that as the lots have been developed in this subdivision a number of issues 
occurred, which have resulted in unwanted drainage outside of designated drainage easement 
locations. To compensate for these events the applicant has worked with City engineering staff 
to adjust and add drainage easements on this plat. For this reason the easements of this final 
plat do not match what is shown on the preliminary plat, but will more accurately represent the 
actual intended stormwater drainage for the subdivision, so it is properly managed for the area. 
In addition to this change, Tract D, designated on the preliminary plat as a Stormwater 
Detention pond has since been parceled off and sold to a neighboring property. The applicant 
has provided stormwater calculations showing that this area is not needed for stormwater 
management. This adjustment has been reviewed and deemed acceptable by the City’s 
engineering department.  These two adjustments are minor, so it was determined that a new 
preliminary plat was not necessary. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has reviewed the proposed 
final plat. All of staff’s technical comments have been addressed.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated floodplain. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
8/14/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final 
Plat. Acting Chair Saul introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. He explained that the property is located in close proximity to the Hudson 
Road and Erik Road intersection. This plat will accommodate 43 lots for single family 
development and satisfies the R-1 district standards and the City’s storm water 
management regulations. Staff recommends approval of the plat with conformance to 
all City staff recommendations and requirements as well as any comments or 
direction from the Commission. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat is consistent with the City’s subdivision code 
and is consistent with its corresponding and approved Preliminary Plat. City staff recommends 
approval. 
 
 

335



Greenhill
Market

Harriet Ln

Ann Ave

Flynn Dr

K
a
ra

 D
r

A
p
p

le
w

o
o

d
 L

n

Athens Ct

M
a

ri
u
s
 D

r

M
e

a
d
o

w
la

rk
 L

n

Vera Way

H
e
d

g
e
w

o
od

C
ir

E
th

a
n

C
t

Danish Dr

Erik Rd

Andover Ct
S

a
m

a
n

th
a

 C
ir

Ironw
ood D

r

A
d
d

is
o

n
 D

r

E
d
e

n
 W

a
y

Reese Rd

Donald Dr

Algonquin Dr

Austin Way

Ashworth Dr

Lloyd Ln

Richard Rd

G
lo

ri
a

 S
t

Blythe Blvd

R
e
d

O
a
k

L
n

N
o

rs
e

 D
r

Andy Ave

F
jo

rd
 D

r

Boxwood Dr

Barkwood Dr

Vera Way (Planned)

C
o

h
e
n

C
t

(P
la

n
n
ed

)

Reese Rd (Planned)

K
a
ra

D
r

(P
la

n
n
e

d
)

H
u
d

s
o

n
 R

d

RP

R-1

MU

MU

MU

R-2

RP

R-3

A-1

A-1A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
August 19, 2019

Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat

Cedar Falls
Rainbow Dr

W 18th St

C
ent e

r
S

t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

H
u

d
s
o
n

R
d

M
a
in

S
t

W 1st St

W 12th St

E Viking R
d

University Ave

Orchard Dr

W Viking Rd

W
aterloo

R
d

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

E Greenhill Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St
N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

r s
e

e
R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W
G

re
e

n
hill Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 15, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming Agreement 
 Main Street Reconstruction 
 
The Department of Community Developmental is planning the reconstruction of Main 
Street from W. 6th Street to Seerley Boulevard. The Main Street reconstruction project 
includes the removal and replacement of the existing pavement. A corridor study was 
completed on this project to analyze the opportunities for improved intersection 
operations, vehicular/pedestrian/bicyclist safety and Complete Street elements. This 
project is listed in the CIP in FY 2021 to begin the design phase in order to determine 
the final improvements to this corridor.  
 
This project will utilize Surface Transportation Block Grant funds (STBG) through 
INRCOG for the construction of this roadway facility. The agreement identifies the 
STBG funds of $1,500,000.00 with the minimum local match of $375,000.00. However, 
the estimated cost for the Main Street project is $7,620,000.00. The remaining dollars 
will be provided with GO Bonds and Local Option Sales Tax. This project is listed in the 
FY 21-24 Capital Improvements Program. 
 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to execute the Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming 
Agreement. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

346



347



348



349



350



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 14, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Assignment & Assumption Agreement: Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 
 

On September 5, 2017, the City and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. entered into an 
Agreement for Private Development pertaining to a new industrial development at 2900 
Capital Way. Then on March 18, 2019 the City and Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. entered 
into an Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development in order to increase 
the minimum assessed value of the building. Both the original Agreement and Amended 
and Restated Agreement included standard terms and conditions, which include 
prohibiting the sale of property and assignment of the Agreement without the written 
approval of the City of Cedar Falls.  This language is included to allow the City to review 
these proposed ownership transfers and insure compliance with the terms of the 
Agreements. 
 

The City recently received a request from Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC to purchase the 
property at 2900 Capital Way from Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. and then enter into a lease 
with the company to lease the building and property back from Broadstone BCI Iowa, 
LLC. For the past few weeks, staff has been working with legal counsel representing the 
seller and buyer and City Attorney Kevin Rogers to prepare the applicable Assignment 
and Assumption Agreement necessary to allow this transaction to proceed. 
 

The attached Assignment and Assumption Agreement has been reviewed and 
approved by all parties.  The obligations pertaining to building and development 
requirements have been satisfied and the new ownership group (Broadstone BCI Iowa, 
LLC) will assume any and all ongoing obligations applicable in the Amended and 
Restated Agreement for Private Development.  These primary ongoing obligations 
include minimum assessed valuations as applicable, payment of property taxes, and 
property maintenance. 
 

It is recommended that City Council approve and adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Assignment and 
Assumption Agreement by and among the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Buckeye 
Corrugated, Inc.; and Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC. 

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this project, please let me know. 
 

xc:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 

351



ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT 

This Assignment and Assumption Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of 

the _____ day of August, 2019, by and among the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a 

municipality (the “City”); BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC., a Delaware corporation (the 

“Developer”); and BROADSTONE BCI IOWA, LLC, a New York limited liability company (the 

“Transferee”). 

WHEREAS, Developer acquired certain real property located within the boundaries of an 

area known as the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, 

more particularly described as: 

All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 

6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 

and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road Industrial 

Park Phase IV, all in the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-

nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Development Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the City and Developer entered into that certain Agreement for Private 

Development dated September 5, 2017, as amended and restated in its entirety by that certain 

Amended and Restated Agreement for Private Development, dated as of March 18, 2019 

(collectively, the “Development Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, Developer agreed to certain terms and conditions, including construction of 

certain improvements on the Development Property, in exchange for the City granting certain 

partial tax exemptions with respect to the Development Property, and certain other terms and 

conditions, as set forth in the Development Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement placed certain restrictions and conditions upon 

any transfer of the Development Property and any assignment of the Development Agreement, 

including, but not limited to, the following provisions: 

a. Developer may not make any sale or conveyance of the Development Property or

of the Development Agreement without the prior written consent of the City, except

where Developer enters into a sale-leaseback transaction with a reputable sale-

leaseback company whereby Developer conveys the minimum improvements

specified in the Development Agreement together with the Development Property

to the sale-leaseback company (“Permitted Transferee”); and

b. The proposed transferee must agree in writing to assume all of the obligations of

Developer under the Development Agreement, and shall agree to be subject to all

conditions and restrictions to which Developer is subject under the Development

Agreement;

352



 

 WHEREAS, Developer proposes to convey the Development Property to Transferee and 

assign the Development Agreement to Transferee, Transferee is a Permitted Transferee and is 

willing to assume all of the obligations of Developer under the Development Agreement, and 

Transferee agrees to be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions to which Developer is 

subject under the Development Agreement; 

 

WHEREAS, Developer and Transferee have agreed to enter into a certain Construction 

and Indemnity Agreement, whereby Developer agrees to complete all construction of those certain 

improvements specified in the Development Agreement at Developer’s sole cost and expense and 

to indemnify Transferee with respect to the same (the “Construction Indemnity”); 

 

WHEREAS, Developer and Transferee have further agreed to enter into a net lease for the 

Development Property, pursuant to which Developer will be the tenant of the improvements and 

the Development Property, responsible for all operation and maintenance of the Development 

Property, and the operator of the business to be conducted on the Development Property (the 

“Lease”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the parties have reached agreement thereon, and now desire to reduce their 

agreement to writing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the parties 

hereto, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Developer’s Satisfaction of Obligations.  The City hereby acknowledges and agrees 

that Developer has met each and every one of its development obligations with respect to the 

construction of those certain minimum improvements under the Development Agreement, and the 

City has issued the Certificate of Completion required under the Development Agreement with 

respect thereto. 

2. Conveyance of Development Property.  Developer has agreed to transfer and 

convey the Development Property to Transferee by Special Warranty Deed, upon satisfaction of 

and consistent with the terms of that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement between Developer, as 

seller, and Transferee, as buyer, dated as of July 1, 2019.  The City hereby consents to said 

conveyance and transfer on the terms stated herein. 

3. Assignment of Development Agreement.  Developer hereby assigns and transfers 

the Development Agreement to Transferee, and Transferee hereby assumes all of Developer’s 

obligations under the Development Agreement.  The City hereby acknowledges and agrees that 

Transferee is a Permitted Transferee, as defined in the Development Agreement, and consents to 

the assignment of the Development Agreement on the terms and conditions stated herein. 

4. Assumption of Obligations of Agreement.  Except for the obligations already 

satisfied as of the date of this Agreement as set forth above, and subject to the terms of the 

Construction Indemnity and the Lease, Transferee hereby agrees to assume all of the obligations 

of Developer under the Development Agreement between Developer and the City, and further 

agrees to be subject to all conditions and restrictions to which Developer is subject under the 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

2

353



Development Agreement, and to perform all of the terms, conditions and provisions which 

Developer is required and obligated to perform, as of the date of this Agreement, under such 

Development Agreement.  Transferee hereby acknowledges receipt of a true copy of the 

Development Agreement. 

5. Lease Obligations of Developer.  Developer and Transferee have agreed to enter

into the Lease, pursuant to which Developer, as tenant, agrees to remain in full possession of the 

Development Property after the transfer to Transferee.  Under the Lease, Developer, as tenant, 

agrees to be fully responsible for complying with all obligations of Developer under the 

Development Agreement at its sole cost and expense.  The City hereby acknowledges that 

Developer, as tenant under the Lease, will be fully responsible for compliance with all obligations 

of Developer under the Development Agreement. Nothing contained in this Section 5, or otherwise 

in this Agreement, shall be construed to require the City to enforce or apply the terms of the 

Development Agreement, or the terms of this Agreement, against or to the Developer. 

6. Instruments Involving the Transfer.  Developer and the Transferee agree to furnish

the City with a copy of the Special Warranty Deed transferring the Development Property to 

Transferee upon request. 

7. Notices.  Developer, Transferee and the City agree that any notice required or

permitted to be given pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, as provided in said 

Development Agreement, shall be in writing and delivered to the parties at their respective 

addresses set forth below: 

Developer: Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 

822 Kumho Drive, Suite 400 

Fairlawn, OH 44333 

Attn: Mark A. Husted, VP & CFO 

Email: mhusted@bcipkg.com 

With a copy to: Thompson Hine LLP 

3900 Key Tower, 127 Public Square 

Cleveland, OH 44114 

Attn: Cathryn E. Greenwald 

Email: Cathryn.Greenwald@ThompsonHine.com 

Transferee: Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC 

c/o Broadstone Real Estate, LLC 

800 Clinton Square 

Rochester, NY 14604 

Attn: Portfolio Manager 

With a copy to: Vaisey Nicholson & Nearpass PLLC 

155 Clinton Square 

Rochester, NY 14604 

Attn: Jeffrey A. Vaisey 

Email: jvaisey@vnnlaw.com 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

3

354



City: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Attn:  City Administrator 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

or to such other designated individual, officer or manager, or to such other address as any party 

shall have furnished to the other parties in writing in accordance with said Development 

Agreement.

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

4

355



 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in 

its name and behalf by its authorized representative, Transferee has caused this Agreement to be 

duly executed in its name and behalf by its authorized representative, and the City has caused this 

Agreement to be duly executed in its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly 

affixed and attested by its City Clerk, all on or as of the day first above written. 

 

THE CITY: 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By: _________________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

By: ________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF IOWA ) 

 )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 2019, 

by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa. 

______________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

[DEVELOPER SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

City Signature Page

356



 

 

DEVELOPER: BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC. 

 a Delaware corporation 

 

 By: ___________________________________ 

 Douglas A. Bosnik, President and CEO 

 By: ___________________________________ 

 Mark A. Husted, Executive VP and CFO 

 

 

STATE OF OHIO ) 

 )  ss: 

COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) 

This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2019, by 

Douglas A. Bosnik, President and CEO, and Mark A. Husted, Executive Vice President and CFO 

of Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., a Delaware corporation. 

____________________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Ohio 

 

[TRANSFEREE SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

Developer Signature Page

357



 

 

TRANSFEREE: BROADSTONE BCI IOWA, LLC, 

a New York limited liability company 

 

By: Broadstone Net Lease, LLC, 

a New York limited liability company, 

its sole member 

 

By: Broadstone Net Lease, Inc., 

a Maryland corporation, 

its managing member 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 

Name: _______________________________ 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 

State of New York ) 

County of Monroe ) 

On ____________________, 2019, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said 

State, personally appeared _____________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and 

acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by 

his/her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 

executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

Signature_________________________________ (SEAL) 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement 
Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.

Transferee Signature Page

358



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT 

PROPERTY BY BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC., TO BROADSTONE BCI 

IOWA, LLC, PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC. 

 

 WHEREAS, Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, entered into 

that certain Agreement for Private Development dated September 5, 2017, as amended and 

restated in its entirety by that certain Amended and Restated Agreement for Private 

Development, dated as of March 18, 2019 (the “Agreement for Private Development”), 

regarding the development of the following described real estate, to-wit: 

 

All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of 

Lot 6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of 

Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in West Viking Road 

Industrial Park Phase IV, all in the East one-half (1/2) of Section Thirty-four (34), 

Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen West (R14W) in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

(the “Development Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. proposes to assign the Agreement for Private 

Development and transfer and convey the Development Property to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, 

a New York limited liability company; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement for Private Development requires the approval and consent 

of the City of Cedar Falls to such assignment and transfer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls has been presented with a 

proposed Assignment and Assumption Agreement, pursuant to which Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 

proposes to assign the Agreement for Private Development and transfer the Development 

Property to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, and Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, agrees to assume the 

359



 

obligations of Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. under the Agreement for Private Development, and 

agrees to perform all duties and obligations thereunder; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to consent to the assignment of the Agreement for 

Private Development and to approve the transfer of the Development Property from Buckeye 

Corrugated, Inc., to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, on the terms and conditions stated in the 

proposed Assignment and Assumption Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the assignment of the Agreement for Private Development by Buckeye 

Corrugated, Inc. to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, be and the same is hereby in all respects 

authorized, approved and confirmed. 

 

2. That the transfer and conveyance of the Development Property by Buckeye 

Corrugated, Inc. to Broadstone BCI Iowa, LLC, be and the same is hereby authorized, approved 

and confirmed. 

 

3. That the form and content of the Assignment and Assumption Agreement, the 

provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 

respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 

hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Assignment 

and Assumption Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content 

now before this meeting, but with such changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as 

shall be approved by such officers, and that the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may 

be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Assignment and Assumption 

Agreement as executed.  The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of the Assignment and 

Assumption Agreement to be filed with the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this ________ day of _________________________, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

(SEAL)     James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

360


	Top
	1. Minutes-08/05/19
	190805MINUTES

	2. Public Hearing for Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	1. PH Memo - Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project

	3. Resolution for Public Hearing for Peter Melendy Park Renovation Project
	4. Resolution correcting scriveners error-Annexation
	Res-Correcting Scrivener&#39;s error-Annexation

	5. Public Hearing-Voluntary Annexation
	1_Memo to Council for 08-19-19
	2_Council Packet Materials (01623254-2x7F7E1)
	3_Council Proceedings (01623167x7F7E1)

	6. Resolution approving voluntary annexation
	7. Public Hearing - Strickler Properties, LC
	1_Public Hearing Memo to Council for August 19, 2019
	2_Strickler Properties, LC Site Map
	3_Authorizing Resolution for Strickler Properties, LC
	4_EXECUTION VERSION Agreement for Private Development - Strickler Properties LC
	5_Quit Claim Deed - Strickler Properties, LC

	8. Resolution for Public Hearing - Strickler Properties, LC
	9. Ordinance #2950, granting a partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC
	2950-PPTE ACOH

	10. Ordinance #2952, granting a partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC
	2952-PPTE FN Investors

	11. Ordinance #2953, TIF Amendment No. 5
	2953-TIF Amend No. 5

	12. Appointment 8/19/19
	1-Appointments Council Memo
	2-Library - Blair-Broeker

	13. 8/5/19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 08 05 19

	14. Planner I Civil Service Certified List
	Planner I-CertList8-2019

	15. Tobacco Permit
	Tobacco Permits 08192019

	16. Liquor Licenses 8/19/19
	Liquor Beer 8-19-19

	17. Job classifications-Housing
	job class housing specialist &amp; coordinator.council.mem
	Coordinator, Community Services 081919 final
	Specialist, Housing 081919 final

	18. Parking Lot Lease
	Memo to Mayor, Council, Viking Pump Parking Lot lease, new format
	Signed Contract with City of Cedar Falls Aug 2019
	Exhibit

	19. JAG Grant FY19-20
	JAG grant memo to council 2019
	JAG grant fy19-20

	20. Ash Tree Removal Project
	Twin City Tree contract 8 19

	21. Equipment Purchase
	day cab cc memo 8 19 19 

	22. Easements-12th Street South Ditch Grading Project
	1. Memo-Easement Agreement
	2.0747_001
	3.0748_001

	23. 2019 Sidewalk Assessment - Bid Opening
	1. Memo 19 Assessment Low Bid
	2. BID TAB - 2019 Sidewalk Assessment

	24. M&R-Prairie Winds 4th
	1. Memo PW4th
	2. MRA for Prairie Winds 4th

	25. M&R-110 Lincoln
	1. Memo MRA 110 Lincoln
	2. MRA for 110 Lincoln

	26. M&R-Zuidberg NA
	1. Memo MRA Zuidberg
	2. MRA for Zuidberg NA

	27. Contract for Completion-Prairie Winds 4th
	1. Contract for Completion Memo - Prairie Winds 4th
	2. Contract for Completion - Prairie Winds 4th
	3. Exhibit A - Final Plat - Prairie Winds 4th Addition
	4. Exhibit B - Engineers Estimate - Prairie Winds 4th
	5. Exhibit C - Performance Bond - Prairie Winds 4th
	6. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond - Prairie Winds 4th

	28. 2019 Bridge Mtc Contract-Minturn
	1. 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	29. CGA-Supp Agreement 4A - Prairie Winds 4th
	1. Memo-Supplemental Agreement 4A
	Supplemental Agreement 4A - Prairie Winds 4th

	30. CGA-Supp Agreement 6A-Sands Addition
	1. Memo-Supplemental Agreement 6A
	Supplemental Agreement 6A - Sands Addn

	31. Close the Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program
	Memo to Close the Waiting List August 19, 2019
	Resolution_Waiting List Closed August 19 2019

	32. CBD Site Plan-Facade-100 E. 2nd Street, Suite 107
	1. Staff report-Your CBD Store

	33. CHN Site Plan-1809 College Street
	1. Tiny house staff report
	2. cover letter
	3. updated site plan 7-25-19
	4. 1809 College Sheet A1 07.20.19 (2)

	34. Pheasant Hollow Seventh Addition Preliminary Plat
	1 CC staff report for Pheasant Hollow Seventh
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 PH 7th Preliminary Plat 8-15-19

	35. Prairie Winds 4th Addition Final Plat
	1 CC Staff report FP for Prairie Winds 4th addition
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 PW 4th FP
	4 Deed of Dedication 8-14-19_signed

	36. STBG Agreement-MPO-Main Street Reconstruction
	cc memo for STBG programming agreement on main street 8-19-19
	Main Street STBG agreement

	37. Assignment and Assumption Agreement - Buckeye Corrugated, Inc.
	1_Council Memo for 08-19-19
	2_Assignment and Assumption Agreement - Buckeye FINAL
	3_Resolution Approving Assignment of Agreement

	38. Allow Bills and Payroll of August 19, 2019
	39. Executive Session - Legal Matters
	Bottom

